
 

DESERT WATER AGENCY    BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MARCH 7, 2017                                                                     REGULAR MEETING AGENDA                                            
 
REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 SOUTH GENE AUTRY TRAIL  – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 

About Desert Water Agency: 
Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  A. February 21, 2017  CIOFFI  

                                                       
3. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   KRAUSE 

 
4. COMMITTEE REPORTS –    A. Executive  – February 24, 2017  CIOFFI                        

  
5. PUBLIC INPUT:  

Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of the public 
may speak on any item listed on the agenda as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more than 
three (3) minutes.  As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the agenda.                                                            

  
6. ITEMS FOR ACTION 

A. Water Use Violation(s) – Civil Penalty Hearing(s)  METZGER 
B. Consider Approval of 2nd Amendment to Sentinel Energy Center Agreement     KRAUSE 
C. Consider Authorization to Enter into MOA for Management of San Gorgonio Sub-Basin  KRAUSE 
D. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 1153 Consolidating DWA Board Elections  RIDDELL 
 with Statewide Elections 
E. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 1154 Back-Up Facility Charges (PPT)  JOHNSON 
F. Consider Approval to Advertise for Bids – 2016/2017 Replacement Pipeline  JOHNSON 
G. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 1155 Statutory Pass-Through Payments  KRIEGER 

  
7. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 

A. State Water Contractors’ Meeting – February 16, 2017  RIDDELL 
B. Directors’ Report on ACWA DC Conference Attendance        CIOFFI/STUART 

    
8. OUTREACH & CONSERVATION  METZGER 
 A. Media Information 
 B. Activities 
 
9. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 
 
10. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
 Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
 Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 
B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
 

C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
 Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 

  Name of Case: Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. Department of Interior 
 

D. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION   
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert Water Agency 
 
 



 
DWA Board Agenda 
March 7, 2017 
Page 2 
 

E. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
  Property: 1.17 acre lot North of the Northeast corner of Sunrise Way and Mesquite Avenue,  
  APN No. 502-560-038 
  Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steven L. Johnson, Asst. General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: DWA and New Mesquite HOA 
  Under Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition 
 

F. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS     
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
  Property: 0.504 acre west of Indian Canyon Drive between Racquet Club Rd. and Via Olivera 
  APN No. 504-260-026 and portions of APN No. 504-260-025 and 504-260-027 
  Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steven L. Johnson, Asst. General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: DWA and Ayres Advisors 
  Under Negotiation: Price and terms 
 
 G. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
  Property: Conveyance of Property APN No. 687-030-019 to City of Cathedral City and 
    Conveyance of Easement APN 677-420-021 to City of Cathedral City   
  Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steven L. Johnson, Asst. General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: DWA and City of Cathedral City 
  Under Negotiation: Terms 
     
11. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 
12. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person 
with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working 
hours prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make reasonable arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may 
be obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



8767 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 02/21/17 

 

   MINUTES  2  
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

February 21, 2017 
 

DWA Board: James Cioffi, President  ) 
 Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President   )         
 Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
  Craig A. Ewing, Director ) 
   
DWA Staff: Mark S. Krause, General Manager ) 
 Steve Johnson, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
 Ashley Metzger, Outreach & Conserv. Mgr. ) 
 Irene Gaudinez, Human Resources Manager ) 
 Michael Abdelnour, Water Operations Supervisor ) 
      
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
  
Public: David Freedman, P.S. Sustainability Comm. ) 
 Paul & Kristy Scaletta, Retired DWA employees ) 
 Tom Abdelnour, Indio resident ) 
     

Attendance 

17732.  President Cioffi opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join him in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
  
17733.  President Cioffi called for approval of the February 7, 2017 
Regular Board meeting minutes. He noted that a revised copy (page 8764) 
was provided to the Board and staff this morning. 
 
  Director Ewing moved for approval. After a second by 
Director Oygar, the minutes were approved with the revision noted.  
 
17734.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated the photos included were from the initial 
damage to the Oroville Dam. He provided notes from the SWC Water 
Operations Committee meeting held on February 17, 2017. 
 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Approval of 02/07/17 
Regular Board Mtg. 
Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
 
Oroville Dam 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8768 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 02/21/17 

 
  Mr. Krause noted that SWC issued a press release on the 
recent hiring of its new General Manager, Jennifer Pierre. 
 
  Mr. Krause provided an update on Whitewater Basin 
deliveries. On February 15 at 3:00 p.m., deliveries were stopped as part of 
the Colorado River Aqueduct maintenance schedule. Deliveries will resume 
in mid-March and are scheduled to last the remainder of the year for a total 
delivery of 300,000 acre-feet. 
          
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause noted several meetings and 
activities he participated in during the past several weeks. 
 
17735.  President Cioffi noted the minutes for the February 13, 2017 
Executive Committee were provided in the Board’s packet. 
       
17736.  President Cioffi opened the meeting for public input. 
 
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period. 
 
17737.  President Cioffi called upon Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer to 
provide an overview of financial activities for the month of January 2017. 
 
  Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer reported that the Operating 
Fund received $1,392,805 in Water Sales Revenue and $64,717 in 
Reclamation Sales Revenue. Included in the Miscellaneous receipts is 
$537,167 in Prop 84 Grant Funds (Turf buy back) and $105,873 from C-
Power (SCE demand program-4th quarter). $1,946,701 was paid out in 
Accounts Payable. Year-to-date Total Water Sales are 13% over budget, 
Year-to-date Total Revenues are 12% over budget, and Year-to-date Total 
Expenses are 17% under budget. There were 22,340 active services as of 
January 31, 2017 compared to 22,347 as of December 31, 2016 and 
compared to 21,710 as of January 31, 2013. 
 
  Reporting on the General Fund, Ms. Bloomer stated that 
$7,594,663 was received in Property Tax Revenue. $780,505 was received 
in Groundwater Assessments ($714,777 from Operating fund and $65,728 
from private pumpers). $339,261 was received from CVWD (Water 
management agreement July-September 2016). $2,269,507 was paid out in 
State Water Project charges (YTD payments: July – January=$11,221,426). 
 
  Reporting on the Wastewater Fund, Ms. Bloomer stated that 
$13,177 was received in Sewer Capacity charges. There are a total of 67 
contracts (47 Cathedral City Cove and 20 Dream Homes). One contract was 
paid in full with total delinquents of 29 (43%). $89,464 was paid out in 
Accounts Payable. 
 
 

GM’s Report 
(Cont.) 
SWC Press Release-
New GM 
 
Water Delivery Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Meetings & Activities 
 
 
Committee Reports 
Executive 02/13/17 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report (January 2017) 
 
 
Operating Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Wastewater Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8769 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 02/21/17 

 
17738.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
present staff’s request for adoption of Resolution No. 1150 Granting 
Retirement Status to Michael Abdelnour. 
  
  Mr. Krause provided a brief highlight of various projects Mr. 
Abdelnour has worked on over the years. 
   
  President Cioffi then read aloud Resolution No. 1150 
highlighting Mr. Abdelnour’s years of service to Desert Water Agency. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 1150. 
President Cioffi seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1150 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE DESERT WATER AGENCY 
GRANTING RETIREMENT STATUS TO 

MICHAEL J ABDELNOUR 
 
  Mr. Abdelnour expressed his appreciation to the Board of 
Directors and staff for their support and generosity. 
 
17739.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to present 
staff’s request for adoption of Resolution No. 1151 Supporting the 
Nomination of Melody McDonald to the Office of ACWA/JPIA Executive 
Committee. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated the Board is being asked to consider 
supporting the nomination of Melody McDonald, Director of the San 
Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District and current member of 
ACWA/JPIA Executive Committee. If the Board concurs in the nomination, 
it may do so by adopting Resolution No. 1151. Following adoption, staff 
will forward a copy to San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District 
and ACWA/JPIA offices. 
 
  President Cioffi made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 1151. 
Director Ewing seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1151 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF DESERT WATER AGENCY CONCURRING 

IN NOMINATION OF MELODY MCDONALD TO 
THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE 

ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES 
JOINT POWERS INSURANCE AUTHORITY (“ACWA JPIA”) 

 
 
 

Items for Action: 
 
Request Adoption of 
Reso. 1150 Granting 
Retirement Status to 
Michael Abdelnour 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Resolution No. 1150 
Adopted 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Adoption of 
Reso. 1151/Support 
Melody McDonald 
ACWA/JPIA Exec. 
Comm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Resolution No. 1151 
Adopted 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8770 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 02/21/17 

 
11740.  President Cioffi asked Finance Director Krieger to present 
staff’s request for adoption of Resolution No. 1152 Authorizing the 
Investment of Monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) and 
Acknowledging Assignment of Signatories. 
 
  Mr. Krieger stated with the recent retirement of Controller, 
Lee Lahtinen, it is necessary to update the signers for the Investment of 
Monies in the LAIF account. As noted within the resolution, General 
Manager Krause, Assistant General Manager Johnson, Finance Director 
Krieger and Accounting Supervisor Saenz are the authorized signers. Upon 
adoption of the Resolution, a certified copy will be provided to LAIF in 
order to update the Agency’s account. 
 
  Vice President Stuart made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 
1152. Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer seconded the motion, which carried 
unanimously. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1152 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE DESERT WATER AGENCY 
AUTHORIZING INVESTMENT OF MONIES 

IN THE LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND 
 

11741.  President Cioffi asked Finance Director Krieger to present 
staff’s request to augment the 2016/2017 Budgets. 
 
  Mr. Krieger explained with the recent rate adjustments 
implemented on January 1, 2017, it is necessary to augment the 2016/2017 
Operating Budget to reflect those adjustments. Rate adjustments were made 
to the monthly fixed meter charges and monthly fire service charges. The 
requested augment to the Operating Fund reflects an increase of $534,000 
to the Water Sales line item (volumetric & fixed charges included in this 
category) and an increase of $52,500 to the Fire Protection line item. The 
total estimated revenue due to the adjustments is $587,500 (January 1 thru 
June 30). 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Krieger stated it is necessary to 
augment (increase) the Maintenance of Mains expense by $575,000 to 
perform the City of Palm Springs valve can adjustments (approved prior & 
current year work). The net effect of the revenue and expense augmentation 
is a positive $11,500. Staff has increased the Contingency Work Order (16-
499) by $11,500 to offset the costs associated with email server upgrades. 
 
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krieger stated it is also necessary 
to augment the 2016/2017 General Fund to reflect the addition of the Indio 
Subbasin Management Plan expense in the amount of $30,000. This item 
was not previously anticipated during the 2016/2017 budget process. In 
order to recognize the additional expense, the Reserve for Operations is 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
 
Request Adoption of 
Reso. 1152 Authorizing 
Investment of Monies 
in LAIF & 
Acknowledging 
Assignment of 
Signatories 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Resolution No. 1152 
Adopted 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request to Augment 
2016/2017 Budgets 
 
 
 
Operating Fund  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8771 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 02/21/17 

 
being reduced by $30,000. Staff recommends approval of the augmented 
2016/2017 Operating & General Fund budgets. 
 
  In response to President Cioffi, Assistant General Manager 
Johnson said that he recently met with Marcus Fuller, Assistant City 
Manager regarding joint efforts on a street priority list. 
 
  There was discussion on possible borrowing of Measure J 
funds for the Agency’s replacement pipeline projects. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to approve the request to 
augment the 2016/2017 Operating and General Fund budgets. After a 
second by Vice President Stuart, the motion carried unanimously. 
 
17742.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to report on 
the January Water Production Comparison. 
 
  Mr. Krause reported that the Agency and its customers 
achieved a 29 percent reduction in potable water production during January 
2017 compared to January 2013. He noted the cumulative savings June 
2015 through January 2017 is 24 percent. He also noted the amount of fresh 
water outflow to the ocean was 5,825,397-acre feet for January. 
 
17743.  President Cioffi asked Agency Counsel Riddell to discuss the 
Consideration of Consolidating DWA Board Elections with Statewide 
Elections. 
 
  Mr. Riddell noted at the last meeting, it was requested that 
staff look into consolidating the Agency’s elections with Statewide 
elections. He explained that Senate Bill 415, the Voter Participation Act 
will take effect on January 1, 2018. The Act prohibits a special district from 
holding an election other than on a statewide election date if holding an 
election on a non-concurrent date has previously resulted in voter turnout 
for a regularly scheduled election in its subdivision at least 25% less than 
the average turnout within the subdivision of the previous 4 statewide 
general elections. 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Riddell stated, if the Board 
approves, the new election date would be moved from November 7, 2017 to 
November 6, 2018. Board Members whose terms would have expired in 
2017 would be extended to 2018 and those with terms expiring in 2019 
extended to 2020. If the Board is interested in this change, the deadline to 
take action is 240 days prior to the upcoming election. 
 
  Concluding his report, Mr. Riddell said for other special 
districts that have changed their election dates, the Riverside County 
Registrar of Voters indicated that there would be cost savings from aligning 
the current election schedule with the statewide elections. At this time, staff 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Request to Augment 
2016/2017 Budgets 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Discussion Items: 
January Water 
Production 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Consider Consolidation 
of DWA Board 
Elections with 
Statewide Elections 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8772 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 02/21/17 

 
has not received any information back from the County Registrar. It is 
anticipated that information will be received in time for the next Board 
meeting of March 7. He stated that the Board can still request changing the 
election date even if not compelled by the voter turnout. He noted a 
typographical error in the title of the draft resolution. 
 
  There was discussion on voter turnout for statewide elections 
and whether there is a cost benefit to change. It was decided that staff 
would return with further information at the March 7 meeting for the Board 
to make a decision. 
 
17744.  Director Ewing announced that he was not able to participate 
in ACWA’s Groundwater Committee webinar last week. 
 
  President Cioffi expressed his appreciation to Damien 
Gilchrist, Water Service Worker III for his hard work and response to a leak 
that occurred in his neighborhood yesterday. 
 
17745.  At 9:12 a.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of Conference with Legal Counsel, (A) Existing Litigation, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band 
of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al; (B) Existing 
Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), ACBCI 
vs. County of Riverside, et al; (C) Existing  Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. 
Department of Interior; (D) Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert 
Water Agency;  and (E) Real Property Negotiators, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.8, Property-APN 502-560-038, Agency Negotiators: 
Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steve L. Johnson, Assistant General 
Manager, Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite HOA, Under 
Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition. 
 
17746.  At 9:44 a.m., President Cioffi reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action. 
   
17747.  In the absence of any further business, President Cioffi 
adjourned the meeting at 9:45 a.m. 
  
                                          ____________________________________ 

                                         James Cioffi, President                                  
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 

Discussion Items: 
(Cont.) 
 
Consider Consolidation 
of DWA Board 
Elections with 
Statewide Elections 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Directors 
Comments/Requests 
 
 
 
Staff Appreciation-
Damien Gilchrist 
 
 
 
Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et 
al.  
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County 
C. Existing Litigation – 
DWA vs. U.S. Dept. of 
Interior 
D. Existing Litigation – 
MSWD vs. DWA 
E. Real Property 
Negotiators  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reconvene –No 
Reportable Action 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



3 

Page 1 of 5 

 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

MARCH 7, 2017 
 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 



Page 2 of 5 

 

 
 

Water Delivery Update 
Whitewater Basin Water Deliveries: 
On February 15th, 2017 deliveries to the basin were stopped for scheduled CRA maintenance. 
Water deliveries are scheduled to resume on March 13, 2017 and are scheduled to last the entire 
year. MWD would like deliver between 300,000 and 400,000 acre-feet to the basin. 
 
During January 2017, The Whitewater Hydro Plant operated for approximately 10 days, 
generating 220,050 kwh of electricity. This output earned a total of $19,408.03. 

 
 
 
 

Turn-Back Pool A Purchase Agreement: 
On March 1, 2017, the Agency submitted a commitment agreement to DWR for Turn-Back Pool A 
water. The Agency agreed to purchase 375 AF of water at a price of $34.44/AF. If, however, the 
Table A allocation exceeds 75%, the Agency is not committed to purchase the Pool A water. 

 
 
 
 

As previously mentioned, the March 21 Board meeting will be cancelled due to a lack of quorum. 
Staff will send out the required notices. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 5 

 

 

Whitewater Mutual Irrigation Headwork Damage: 
The rains on Monday February 27, 2017 caused major flooding damage to the Whitewater Mutual 
Irrigation Headworks system. Mud and debris flowed into the trough that the pumps deliver water 
to, resulting in flow restrictions to the customers downstream. The trough has a metal lid that 
covers most of the opening, however, mud and debris did infiltrate around the trough outlet pipe. 
Agency construction crews worked over 2 days to clear the mud and debris from the trough and 
the surrounding roadway. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 5 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 5 

 

 
General Manager’s Meetings and Activities 

 
Meetings: 
 
02/21/2017 DWA Board Meeting DWA 
02/21/2017 DWA/CVWD/MWD Coordination Meeting Conf. Call 
02/24/2017 Executive Committee Meeting DWA 
02/27/2017 DWA/CVWD/MWD Coordination Meeting (Article 21/Pool A)  Etiwanda 
02/27/2017 Travel to Washington D.C. / ACWA D.C. 
02/28/2017 Meetings with D.C. Representatives/ ACWA D.C. 
03/1/2017 Meetings with D.C. Representatives/ ACWA D.C. 
03/02/2017 Travel Day Ontario 
   

 
Activities: 
 

1) Sites Reservoir Agreement 
2) E-Billing – Completed and now tracking 
3) Outreach Talking Points – KMIR 
4) Snow Creek Hydro SCE contract extension - ongoing 
5) Whitewater Hydro – Developing new administration procedures 
6) State and Federal Contractors Water Authority and Delta Specific Project Committee 

(Standing) 
7) Property Acquisition - New Mesquite HOA – Ongoing 
8) MSWD Lawsuit – Ongoing 
9) ACBCI Section 14 Facilities & Easements 
10) CPV Agreement Amendment 
11) Chain of Title 
12) Lake Oroville Spillway Damage 
13) Replacement Pipelines 2016-2017 
14) Lake Oroville NMFS Requirements 
15) DWA/CVWD/MWD Operations Coordination/Article 21/Pool A 
16) DWA/CVWD/MWD Agreements Update 
17) Recycled Water Effluent Reservoir Coating Failures 
18) SGMA Alternative Plans and Bridge Documents/Tribal Comments 
19) SWP 2017 Water Supply 
20) SGMA San Gorgonio Pass Sub-Basin MOU 
21) ACBCI Law Suits 
22) Lake Perris Dam Remediation 
23) Drought Pricing Study 
24) Section 14 Pipeline Easements 
25) DOI Regulation 
26) DWA Asphalt Paving Repairs 

 
 

 



6-A 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
MARCH 7, 2017 

 
RE: WATER USE VIOLATION – CIVIL PENALTY HEARINGS 
 
Starting in March, 2016, staff began issuing water use violations under the new 
ordinance; to date, more than 460 violations have been issued. Recipients of the 
violations have 7 days to request a hearing in writing. Two violations will be reviewed at 
today’s board meeting. 

The following is a summary of the procedure for the hearings. 

Staff has provided the Board with the correspondence for each of the violations 
including photographic evidence. Photographs will also be reviewed during the hearing 
to provide the board and customer a common point of reference for discussion. 

Staff will introduce each violation with a summary of the event. After the introduction the 
customer will be invited by the Board to speak concerning the violation. If the recipient 
of the violation is not present or does not wish to speak, staff will read the violation 
summary and submit the written petition into the record for board action. 

Each petition will be discussed and voted on separately. 

As a point of reference, staff has notified Agency customers concerning water 
conservation regulations in several different ways: 

Initial Notifications Upon Restrictions Going into Effect 

1. Published the ordinance in The Public Record 
2. Published the ordinance in the Agency Website 
3. Social media outlets 
4. KMIR, KESQ, KPCC, the Joey English Show 
5. Desert Sun Valley Voice 
6. Palm Desert Patch 
7. Email to Palm Springs and Cathedral City Chambers 
8. Emails to HOA in our contact list 
9. Emails to high volume users 

 

 



Comprehensive Notifications – Since June 2015 

1. Direct mail to all customers 
2. Bill inserts 
3. Bill on envelope messaging 
4. Billboards 
5. Online advertising (KESQ) 
6. Television advertising (Time Warner) 
7. Social media 
8. Several public presentations on TV 
9. Print and radio Interviews 
10. DWA and CVWD websites 
11. Rates brochure given to all new customers 

 



1. Robert Swanson, 2010 N Acacia Rd, Palm Springs 

 

a. On Monday, January 30 at 8:45 a.m. a Desert Water Agency 

representative observed water use violations at said address and reported 

them. 

i. Irrigating during restricted hours 

 

b. Fine amount $50 

i. Single-family home 

ii. First violation  

 

c. Reason for petition 

i. Unaware of restrictions 

ii. Had recently moved 

iii. Power outage 

iv. Does not know where timer is 

 

d. Other information 

i. Customer does not have smart irrigation controller 

  









 
 
 
January 31,  2017 
 
Robert Swanson                                                                          
2010 N Acacia Rd E 
Palm Springs, CA 92262 
 

RE: FINE ON  2010 N Acacia Rd E 
 

Dear Valued Customer: 
 
Due to a water use violation observed and documented by a Desert Water Agency representative on 
Monday, January 30, 2017 at 8:45 am, you are being served with a complaint to impose a civil 
(monetary) penalty.  
 
You have 7 days to request, in writing, a hearing on this violation. If you do request a hearing, you will 
need to come to the Agency and present information that refutes the alleged violation. If you do not 
request a hearing within 7 days of this complaint, the civil penalty of $50.00 will be added onto your 
water bill.  
 

You were cited for: 
 

 

 

  Outdoor  irrigation shall be restricted to Mondays, Wednesdays,& Fridays,  before 7:00 a.m. 

and after 7:00 p.m. 

 

 

 
This is a violation of Desert Water Agency’s Ordinance No. 65. For a first violation within any 12-
month period, the civil penalty shall be $100 for a multi-family residential, commercial or institutional 
establishment or $50 for a single-family residential customer. 
 
For a second violation within any 12-month period, the civil penalty shall be $200 for a multi-family 
residential, commercial or institutional establishment or $100 for a single-family residential customer. 
 
For a third and each subsequent violation within any 12-month period, the civil penalty shall be $500 for 
a multi-family residential, commercial or institutional establishment or $250 for a single-family 
residential customer.    
 



Failure to pay the civil penalty on your water bill may result in termination of water service. In addition, 
the Agency staff shall be authorized to discontinue water service for any violation of the Ordinance.  
 
If you have any additional questions, please contact us. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
 
Ashley Metzger 
Outreach & Conservation Manager 
Desert Water Agency 
On behalf of General Manager Mark Krause 



2. James Basile, 2100 E Rochelle Rd, Palm Springs 

 

a. On Monday, February 13 at 12:10 p.m. a Desert Water Agency 

representative observed water use violations at said address and reported 

them. 

i. Irrigating during restricted hours 

 

b. Fine amount $50 

i. Single-family home 

ii. First violation  

 

c. Reason for petition 

i. Power outage 

ii. Backup battery in timer failed 

iii. Innocent error/penalty unfair 

 

d. Other information 

i. Customer does not have smart irrigation controller. When customer 

came to office, he was informed about the smart controller program 

and was encouraged to apply. 

 





1

Ashley Metzger

From: James Basile <zacale@aol.com>

Sent: Wednesday, February 22, 2017 8:54 AM

To: Ashley Metzger

Subject: Watering Fine Appeal

I am writing this in response to the letter I received last Thursday 2-16-17 . I was notified that I was being fined $50.00 for 
watering my lawn at 12:10pm on Monday 2-13-17 , which is accurate . Except I was completely unaware that it was 
happening !  I have done everything I can to reduce my water usage throughout this current drought , and thankfully this 
winter has allowed me to completely shut the landscape water off for long periods of time .  The circumstances as to why 
my irrigation came on at noon on Monday are as follows :   My landscape company comes to my house on Saturday`s , 
which they were there on Sat. 2-11-17 , they did there job properly , which includes checking my irrigation timer , 
everything was working properly , and programmed properly . My watering times were set to come on at 12:00am , for 2 
minutes , per station on Mon.,Wed.,Fri .  Saturday night between 8-9pm , Palm Springs had a downpour , and my house 
lost power briefly . The battery in my irrigation clock (that was replaced in October) , must have failed . Because when I 
received your letter , I immediately checked my entire system and found out that that my clock had reset itself , Noon had 
become Midnight . I work all week , so I was not aware that the irrigation was coming on during the day .  For someone to 
be assessed a $50.00 dollar penalty , for a completely , innocent error , is very unfair . And I am asking to have it reversed 
. Thank you for taking the the time to read my message . James Basile 2100 E Rochelle Rd . Palm Springs .  



 
 
 
February 13, 2017 
 
James Basile 
2100 E Rochelle Rd 
Palm Springs, CA 92262                                                  
 

RE: FINE ON  2100 E Rochelle Rd 
 

Dear Valued Customer: 
 
Due to a water use violation observed and documented by a Desert Water Agency representative on 
Monday, February 13, 2017 at 12:10 pm, you are being served with a complaint to impose a civil 
(monetary) penalty.  
 
You have 7 days to request, in writing, a hearing on this violation. If you do request a hearing, you will 
need to come to the Agency and present information that refutes the alleged violation. If you do not 
request a hearing within 7 days of this complaint, the civil penalty of $50.00 will be added onto your 
water bill.  
 

You were cited for: 
 

  Outdoor irrigation shall be restricted to Mondays, Wednesdays, & Fridays, before 7:00 a.m. 

and after 7:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 
This is a violation of Desert Water Agency’s Ordinance No. 65. For a first violation within any 12-
month period, the civil penalty shall be $100 for a multi-family residential, commercial or institutional 
establishment or $50 for a single-family residential customer. 
 
For a second violation within any 12-month period, the civil penalty shall be $200 for a multi-family 
residential, commercial or institutional establishment or $100 for a single-family residential customer. 
 
For a third and each subsequent violation within any 12-month period, the civil penalty shall be $500 for 
a multi-family residential, commercial or institutional establishment or $250 for a single-family 
residential customer.    
 



Failure to pay the civil penalty on your water bill may result in termination of water service. In addition, 
the Agency staff shall be authorized to discontinue water service for any violation of the Ordinance.  
 
If you have any additional questions, please contact us. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
 
Ashley Metzger 
Outreach & Conservation Manager 
Desert Water Agency 
On behalf of General Manager Mark Krause 



6-B 

  
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
MARCH 7, 2017 

 
 

RE: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF 2ND AMENDMENT AGREEMENT WITH 
SENTINEL ENERGY CENTER TO ACCEPT FUNDS FOR 
CONSERVATION PROGRAM FUNDING 

 

Background 
Since 2008, the Sentinel Energy Center (“Sentinel”, formerly CPV Sentinel) has 
provided Desert Water Agency with funding for its smart irrigation controller program. 
With this funding, DWA has installed about 2,500 controllers. 
 
The conservation funding agreement with CPV Sentinel previously had a maximum 
contribution level of $3 million. That amount is nearly exhausted ($2,957,569). The 
remaining $42,431 will be invoiced to Sentinel once it is fully expended. We currently 
have $8,791 that has not been spent and expect to invoice by end of FY 2016-17. 
 
Continuing partnership 
DWA staff met with Sentinel staff in March of 2016 to determine if additional funding 
could be contributed to continue supporting Desert Water Agency conservation 
programs. 

Sentinel expressed a willingness to continue working with Desert Water Agency in order 
to meet permit obligations to the California Energy Commission (“CEC”). Sentinel 
operates on a calendar year budget, and determined that they were willing to contribute 
$100,000 in the 2017 year. Sentinel expressed that they would likely continue annual 
contributions to DWA for the life of the project. 

Staff discussed the parameters of this funding with Sentinel. Funds will continue to be 
used for the smart irrigation controller program and can be used to support the 
FreeSprinklerNozzles.com program. In the future other trackable conservation programs 
can be considered for these funds, but DWA may need to provide a memo for CEC 
approval. 

Second amendment to agreement 
This agreement presented following the staff report is intended to reflect Sentinel 
Energy Center’s additional contribution (the $100,000 committed in 2017 beyond the 



Page 2 of 2 
 

$3,000,000 commitment) and allow DWA to start encumbering the funding ahead of 
Sentinel’s payment. 
 
The agreement also sets forth the process for requesting and receiving funding in future 
years and notes that the funds can be used for controllers or irrigation upgrades, such 
as nozzle replacement. 
 
DWA will be required, under this agreement, to provide Sentinel with updates on the 
number of controller installations a quarterly basis. This process will be feasible and 
require minimal staff time. 
 
Staff recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to 
execute a second amendment to its existing Conservation Agreement with CPV 
Sentinel to accept their $100,000 contribution to DWA conservation programs. Staff 
would allocate about 80% of the funding to support controllers and 20% of the funding 
to support the new FreeSprinklerNozzles.com program. 

Using the funds in this manner would allow DWA to put about 5,000 nozzles in place for 
a savings of about 7 million gallons or 21.5 AF per year and install about 275 controllers 
for a savings of about 35 million gallons or 109 AF per year. Staff is working to 
reinvigorate the controller program and will continue outreach as necessary to boost 
installation. 

Savings projected may not be achieved given that the drought restrictions lower the 
baseline for new controllers being installed. (e.g. controllers are being installed for grass 
areas that were brown/dead during the drought) 



01358.00000\29497600.1  

SECOND AMENDMENT TO WATER CONSERVATION FUNDING AGREEMENT 

Desert Water Agency (“DWA”) and Sentinel Energy Center, LLC, as successor in 

interest to CPV Sentinel, LLC (“Sentinel”) (collectively, the “Parties”) enter into this Second 

Amendment to Water Conservation Funding Agreement (“Second Amendment”) as of the last 

date either Party signs this Second Amendment. 

I. RECITALS 

A. DWA and Sentinel entered into a Water Conservation Funding Agreement dated 

August 23, 2008, thereafter amended on January 14, 2010 (the “Agreement”) for the purpose of 

conserving freshwater supplies within DWA pursuant to requirements imposed by the California 

Energy Commission (“CEC”) as a condition of approval of a power plant to be constructed 

within DWA’s boundaries (the “Project”).  Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise 

defined have the meaning set forth in the Agreement.  

B. The Agreement required, among other things, that Sentinel provide a deposit of 

money with DWA in the amount of $300,000 to be replenished annually as funds were 

expended, for use by DWA in purchasing and installing ET Irrigation Controllers for DWA’s 

customers in furtherance of water conservation measures, with water savings intended to offset 

the water that would be used by Sentinel in its operation of the Project.  The Agreement provided 

that Sentinel’s obligation to provide the deposit of funds to be used by DWA for that purpose 

would cease upon DWA’s installation of 4,800 ET Irrigation Controllers, and that Sentinel’s 

total monetary obligation under the Agreement would not exceed $3,000,000.  The Agreement 

further provided that DWA would monitor the effectiveness of these water conservations efforts 

in a manner approved by the CEC so as to meet all requirements imposed by the CEC upon 

Sentinel.  



01358.00000\29497600.1  

C. Sentinel has now expended $3,000,000 on water conservation efforts by DWA, 

and therefore has satisfied its obligations set forth in the Agreement.  However, Sentinel wishes 

to deposit additional sums to DWA for DWA’s continued use in advancing water conservation 

measures within DWA in order to continue to ensure that the Project causes no net increase in 

the freshwater use within the Basin.   

D. The purpose of this Second Amendment is to provide for Sentinel’s delivery of 

additional funds to DWA for DWA’s use in pursuing the water conservation measures described 

in the Agreement to satisfy the CEC’s requirements.  

II. TERMS OF THE SECOND AMENDMENT 

For valuable consideration, including the commitments and promises contained in this 

Second Amendment, the Parties agree to the following, notwithstanding Sentinel’s completion of 

the total funding obligation set forth in Section II.C.4: 

A. On or before July 1, 2017, Sentinel shall provide DWA the sum of $100,000, 

which shall be applied to DWA’s ET Irrigation Controller programs and irrigation system 

upgrade programs.   

B. Each year, DWA will submit a new funding request to Sentinel for additional 

funds to be used by DWA for the purposes described in Section II.A. above.  Sentinel will advise 

DWA in writing whether funds will be made available by Sentinel for that year, and if so in what 

amount.  If Sentinel does not respond within 30 days of DWA’s request, Sentinel shall be 

deemed to have elected not to make a contribution for such year.  In reliance on that 

commitment, if any, DWA will budget and begin expending funds. Sentinel will deliver the 

committed funds, if any, to DWA by July 1 of each year for DWA’s use on the water 

conservation measures described in Section II.A. above.  DWA releases and indemnifies Sentinel 



01358.00000\29497600.1  

from any claims that may arise against Sentinel in connection with DWA’s expenditure of such 

funds.  

C. On a quarterly basis, DWA will advise Sentinel of the number of ET Irrigation 

Controllers installed for DWA customers and other improvements made during the previous 

year, and the total number of ET Irrigation Controllers and a description of other water 

conservation measures completed with Sentinel funding.   

D. Sentinel shall have sole discretion to determine whether it will provide additional 

funds to DWA in any year, and if so, the amount to be provided to DWA for that year. 

E. Except as expressly set forth in this Second Amendment, the Agreement remains 

in full force and effect.  From and after the date hereof, references to the Agreement shall be 

deemed to refer to the Agreement as it has been amended by this Second Amendment.    

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Second Amendment to be 

executed and deemed effective as of the last date that either Party executes this Second 

Amendment below.  

DATED:                                         , 2017 SENTINEL ENERGY CENTER, LLC 

By:_________________________ 
Mark McDaniels 

Its: Manager 

DATED:                                         , 2017 Approved as to Form: 
MORGAN, LEWIS & BOCKIUS LLP  

By:__________________________ 
Neeraj Arora 
Attorneys for Sentinel Energy Center, LLC 



01358.00000\29497600.1  

DATED:                                         , 2017 DESERT WATER AGENCY 

By:___________________________ 
Mark S. Krause 

Its: General Manager/Chief Engineer 

DATED:                                         , 2017 Approved as to Form: 
BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 

By:____________________________ 
Michael T. Riddell 

Attorneys for Desert Water Agency 
 



6-C 
STAFF REPORT 

TO 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
MARCH 7, 2017 

 
RE: CONSIDER AUTHORIZATION FOR THE GENERAL MANAGER TO 
ENTER INTO A MOA FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF SAN GORGONIO 
SUB-BASIN  
 
In 2014, Governor Brown passed legislation that provides a statewide framework for 
sustainable groundwater management in California (Senate Bill [SB] 1168, Assembly 
Bill [AB] 1739, and SB 1319). This legislation referred to as the Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Act (SGMA), is intended to support local groundwater 
management through the oversight of a Groundwater Sustainability Agency(s) (GSA). 
The SGMA requires all area of a basin be covered by one or more GSAs in all high and 
medium priority basins by June 30, 2017.The DWR has designated the San Gorgonio 
Sub-basin as a medium priority and is, therefore, subject to the SGMA. DWA has been 
named the “exclusive” GSA for the area within its boundaries that overlie a portion of 
the San Gorgonio Sub-basin (SGMA Section 10723(c)(1)(C)). The SGMA also requires 
GSAs to develop and adopt a groundwater sustainability plan (GSP) for the San 
Gorgonio Sub-basin by January 31, 2022. The creation of a GPS for the San Gorgonio 
Sub-basin will require DWA to meet, confer, and collaborate with the San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency, City of Banning, Cabazon Water District, Banning Heights Mutual 
Water Company, and Mission Springs Water District (Partners).  
 
The General Manager, Mark Krause, is requesting authorization to enter into a 
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with the Partners. The purpose of the MOA is to 
facilitate the coordination and cooperation with other Ground Water Sustainability 
Agencies (GSAs)" being formed by the Partners. The Partners mutually desire and 
intend to cooperate and coordinate in the subsequent preparing and implementing one 
or more GSP(s). Coordination and information sharing among the Partners will assist in 
meeting the requirements of the SGMA for the formation of GSP for the San Gorgonio 
Sub-basin.  
 
Granting the general manager the authority to enter into the MOA that covers the San 
Gorgonio Sub-basin will allow DWA to move forward on developing and submitting a 
GSP with the Partners.  
 
Staff recommends that the Board authorize the General Manager to enter into a MOA 
with the Partners for the purpose of developing GSP that governs the management of 
the San Gorgonio Sub-basin.    



- 1 - 
55397.00018\29103215 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT TO FORM A GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY 
AGENCY FOR A PORTION OF THE SAN GORGONIO PASS SUBBASIN AND TO 
COORDINATE WITH OTHER GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCIES 

 
This 2017 Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) is entered into by and among Cabazon Water 

District (CWD), City of Banning (Banning), Banning Heights Mutual Water Company (BHMWC), 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (SGPWA), Mission Springs Water District (MSWD), and Desert 
Water Agency (DWA), which may be referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as 
the “Parties.” 

 
Pursuant to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) and as further set forth 

herein, the purposes of this MOA are to form a Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) for a 
portion of the San Gorgonio Pass Subbasin, as described in greater detail below (Basin), the members 
of which GSA shall be CWD, Banning, BHMWC, and SGPWA (herein, the SGP-GSA), and to 
establish that the SGP-GSA will coordinate and cooperate with other GSAs that already exist and will 
be formed in the Basin. 

 
WHEREAS, on September 16, 2014, Governor Jerry Brown signed into law Senate Bills 1168 

and 1319, and Assembly Bill 1739, collectively known as the Sustainable Groundwater Management 
Act (SGMA), codified in certain provisions of the California Government Code, commencing with 
Section 65350.5, and in Part 2.74 of Division 6 of the California Water Code, commencing with 
Section 10720; and 

 
WHEREAS, SGMA went into effect on January 1, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, various clarifying amendments to SGMA were signed into law in 2015, including 

Senate Bills 13 and 226, and Assembly Bills 617 and 939, allowing, among other things, mutual water 
companies and water corporations regulated by the Public Utilities Commission to participate in a 
GSA through a memorandum of agreement or other legal agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the San Gorgonio Pass Subbasin (Basin), as further depicted in Exhibit A to this 

MOA, is identified by the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) Bulletin 118 as Subbasin 
No. 7-21.04 of the Coachella Valley Groundwater Basin, and is designated by DWR as medium 
priority, and therefore, except as provided by SGMA, the Basin is subject to the requirements of 
SGMA; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties recognize and agree that a portion of the Basin ( the “Adjudicated 

Area”) is subject to the Beaumont Basin adjudication and Judgment in the case referred to as San 
Timoteo Watershed Management Authority v. City of Banning, et al., Riverside County Superior Court 
Case No. RIC 389197, and that pursuant to SGMA Section 10720.8(a)(1), said portion of the Basin 
generally is not subject to the requirements of SGMA and will not be managed by the SGP-GSA; and 

 
WHEREAS, SGMA Section 10720.7 requires the Basin, as a medium priority basin which is 

not designated by DWR as being subject to critical conditions of overdraft, to be managed by a 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) or coordinated GSPs by January 31, 2022; and 

 
WHEREAS, SGMA Section 10727(b) authorizes (1) a single GSP covering the entire Basin 

developed and implemented by one GSA, (2) a single GSP covering the entire Basin developed and 



- 2 - 
55397.00018\29103215 

implemented by multiple GSAs, or (3) multiple GSPs developed and implemented by multiple GSAs 
and coordinated pursuant to a single coordination agreement that covers the entire Basin; and 

 
WHEREAS, SGMA Section 10735.2 requires the formation of a GSA or multiple GSAs for 

the Basin by June 30, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, SGMA Section 10723.6(a) authorizes a combination of local agencies to form a 

GSA pursuant to a joint powers agreement, a memorandum of agreement, or other legal agreement, 
and SGMA Section 10723.6(b) authorizes a water corporation regulated by the Public Utilities 
Commission or a mutual water company to participate in a GSA through a memorandum of agreement 
or other legal agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, for purposes of forming the SGP-GSA, as further depicted in Exhibit B to this 

MOA, CWD, Banning, and SGPWA are local agencies as defined by SGMA, and BHMWC is a 
mutual water company, wherein each overlies at least a portion of the Basin and each has respective 
water supply, water management, and/or land use responsibilities within the Basin, and thus each is 
authorized by SGMA to become part of the SGP-GSA; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to SGMA Section 10723(c)(1)(C), DWA has been established as the 

exclusive GSA for a certain portion of the Basin (herein, the DWA-GSA), as further specified and 
depicted in Exhibit C to this MOA; and 
 

WHEREAS, on or about September 28, 2016, MSWD filed an amended notice of intent to be 
a GSA for an approximately one-square mile area in the northeastern portion of the Basin that lies 
within the service areas of MSWD and SGPWA, which one-square mile area is further specified and 
depicted in Exhibit D to this MOA and is referred to herein as the “Verbenia Area”; and 

 
WHEREAS, on or about January 10, 2017, SGPWA also filed a notice of intent to be a GSA 

for the Verbenia Area, as further specified and depicted in Exhibit D to this MOA; and 
 
WHEREAS, on or about January 13, 2017, DWR designated the Verbenia Area to be in 

overlap for purposes of the competing GSA notices filed by MSWD and SGPWA, and thus MSWD 
and SGPWA are working together to establish a separate GSA for the Verbenia Area (herein, the 
Verbenia-GSA); and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the terms of this MOA, and in furtherance of the shared intent 

of the Parties to maximize funding opportunities for the Basin and avoid potential intervention in the 
Basin by the State Water Resources Control Board, the Parties agree that the SGP-GSA formed by this 
MOA will cover the entire Basin except (A) that portion of the Basin covered by the DWA-GSA 
wherein DWA is the exclusive GSA, (B) that portion of the Basin to be covered by the Verbenia-GSA 
to be established by MSWD and SGPWA, and (C) the Adjudicated Area portion of the Basin, and the 
Parties mutually desire and intend that the SGP-GSA, the DWA-GSA, and the Verbenia-GSA will 
cooperate and coordinate in subsequently preparing and implementing one or more GSPs for 
sustainable management of the Basin; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties mutually desire and intend to work with local stakeholders and 

interested entities in the Basin that are not Parties to this MOA, including but not limited to the 
Morongo Band of Mission Indians (MBMI), the County of Riverside, High Valleys Water District, 



- 3 - 
55397.00018\29103215 

overlying landowners, and others, and as further specified in this MOA, to carry out the policy, 
purposes, and requirements of SGMA in the Basin; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with SGMA Section 10720.3 and other applicable law, the Parties 

mutually understand and agree that nothing in SGMA and nothing in this MOA grants or confers any 
new or additional authority, discretion, or jurisdiction to any of the Parties over any Tribal lands or 
activities of the MBMI, and that any ongoing or continued participation by MBMI in relation to this 
MOA or the Parties’ implementation of SGMA in the Basin is completely voluntary on the part of 
MBMI. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, terms, conditions, and covenants 
contained herein, it is mutually understood and agreed as follows: 

 
I. Incorporation of Recitals 

 
The Recitals stated above are incorporated herein by reference. 

 
II. Purposes 

 
The purposes of this MOA are as follows: 
 

A. To form the SGP-GSA for a portion of the Basin as specified herein and as depicted in 
Exhibit B to this MOA pursuant to applicable provisions and requirements of SGMA, 
including but not limited to SGMA Sections 10723 and 10723.6; and 
 

B. To establish initial terms for the SGP-GSA, the DWA-GSA, and the Verbenia-GSA to 
cooperate and coordinate with each other in preparing and implementing one or more 
GSPs for the Basin and carrying out the policy, purposes, and requirements of SGMA in 
the Basin. 

 
III. Approval of MOA and Formation of the SGP-GSA 

 
Approval of this MOA and formation of the SGP-GSA shall be accomplished as follows: 

 
A. CWD, Banning, and SGPWA each will hold its own noticed public hearing pursuant to 

SGMA Section 10723(b) and Government Code Section 6066 and at such hearing will 
consider approval of a Resolution by its governing board to enter this MOA and jointly 
form the SGP-GSA as specified in this MOA; 
 

B. BHMWC will conduct an official meeting in accordance with any articles of 
incorporation, bylaws, or other laws applicable to BHMWC and at such meeting will 
consider approval of a Resolution by its governing board to enter this MOA and jointly 
form the SGP-GSA as specified in this MOA; 
 

C. DWA and MSWD each will hold its own regular or special meeting and at such 
meeting will consider approval of a Resolution by its governing board to enter this 
MOA; 
 



- 4 - 
55397.00018\29103215 

D. Upon the foregoing approvals by CWD, Banning, BHMWC, and SGPWA, there shall 
be established the San Gorgonio Pass Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
(SGP-GSA), the members of which shall be CWD, Banning, BHMWC, and SGPWA as 
provided in this MOA. 

 
IV. Definitions 

 
The following terms, whether used in the singular or plural, and when used with initial 

capitalization, shall have the meanings specified herein.  The Parties agree that any definitions set forth 
herein are intended to be consistent with SGMA, and in the event of any discrepancy between a 
defined term in this MOA and a defined term in SGMA, the terms of SGMA shall control. 

 
A. Adjudicated Area refers to that portion of the Basin that is subject to the Beaumont 

Basin adjudication and Judgment in the case referred to as San Timoteo Watershed 
Management Authority v. City of Banning, et al., Riverside County Superior Court Case 
No. RIC 389197. 
 

B. Basin refers to the San Gorgonio Pass Subbasin, designated by the California 
Department of Water Resources Bulletin 118 as Subbasin No. 7-21.04, as further 
specified and depicted in Exhibit A to this MOA. 
 

C. Banning means the City of Banning. 
 

D. BHMWC means the Banning Heights Mutual Water Company. 
 

E. CWD means the Cabazon Water District. 
 

F. DWA means the Desert Water Agency. 
 

G. DWR means the California Department of Water Resources. 
 

H. DWA-GSA refers to the GSA that has been established for a certain portion of the 
Basin pursuant to SGMA Section 10723(c)(1)(C), wherein DWA has been designated 
as the exclusive GSA, as further specified and depicted in Exhibit C to this MOA. 
 

I. GSA means Groundwater Sustainability Agency, as defined by SGMA. 
 

J. GSP means Groundwater Sustainability Plan, as defined by SGMA. 
 

K. MBMI means the Morongo Band of Mission Indians. 
 

L. Memorandum of Agreement or MOA refers to this Memorandum of Agreement. 
 

M. MSWD means the Mission Springs Water District. 
 

N. Party or Parties refers individually or collectively to Cabazon Water District, City of 
Banning, Banning Heights Mutual Water Company, Mission Springs Water District, 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency, and Desert Water Agency, as signatories to this 
MOA. 



- 5 - 
55397.00018\29103215 

O. SGMA refers to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act. 
 
P. SGP-GSA refers to the San Gorgonio Pass Subbasin GSA formed under this MOA, the 

members of which GSA are CWD, Banning, BHMWC, and SGPWA. 
 

Q. SGPWA means the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency. 
 

R. Verbenia-GSA refers to a GSA to be formed by MSWD and SGPWA for an 
approximately one-square mile area in the northeastern portion of the Basin that lies 
within the service areas of MSWD and SGPWA, as further specified and depicted in 
Exhibit D to this MOA. 

 
V. Boundaries of GSAs 

 
A. The boundaries of the SGP-GSA shall be the entire Basin except (A) that portion of the 

Basin covered by the DWA-GSA wherein DWA is the exclusive GSA, as further 
specified and depicted in Exhibit C to this MOA, (B) that portion of the Basin to be 
covered by the Verbenia-GSA to be established by MSWD and SGPWA, as further 
specified and depicted in Exhibit B to this MOA, and (C) that portion of the Basin 
constituting the Adjudicated Area. 
 

B. The boundaries of DWA-GSA are that portion of the Basin within which DWA is the 
exclusive GSA pursuant to SGMA Section 10723(c)(1)(C), as further specified and 
depicted in Exhibit C to this MOA. 
 

C. The boundaries of the Verbenia-GSA are the approximately one-square mile area in the 
northeastern portion of the Basin that lies within the service areas of MSWD and 
SGPWA, as further specified and depicted in Exhibit D to this MOA. 
 

D. The Parties understand and agree that pursuant to SGMA Section 10720.8, the portion 
of the Basin which is subject to the Beaumont Basin adjudication and Judgment in the 
case referred to as San Timoteo Watershed Management Authority v. City of Banning, et 
al., Riverside County Superior Court Case No. RIC 389197, generally is not subject to 
the requirements of SGMA. 
 

E. The Parties understand and agree in accordance with SGMA Section 10720.3 and other 
applicable law that nothing in SGMA and nothing in this MOA grants or confers any 
new or additional authority, discretion, or jurisdiction to any of the Parties over any 
Tribal lands or activities of the MBMI, and that any ongoing or continued participation 
by MBMI in relation to this MOA or the Parties’ implementation of SGMA in the Basin 
is completely voluntary on the part of MBMI. 

 
VI. Coordination and Cooperation 

 
A. Continued Cooperation.  The Parties to this MOA will continue to meet, confer, 

coordinate, and collaborate to discuss and develop technical, managerial, financial, and 
other criteria and procedures for the preparation, governance, and implementation of a 
GSP or coordinated GSPs in the Basin and to carry out the policy, purposes, and 
requirements of SGMA in the Basin. 



- 6 - 
55397.00018\29103215 

B. Points of Contact.  Each Party shall designate a principal contact person for that Party, 
who may be changed from time to time at the sole discretion of the designating Party.  
The principal contact person for each Party shall be responsible for coordinating with 
the principal contact persons for the other Parties in scheduling meetings and other 
activities under this MOA. 
 

C. Management Areas.  The Parties acknowledge that SGMA, and provisions of the 
SGMA regulations promulgated by DWR, including but not limited to Section 354.20 
(23 C.C.R. § 354.20), authorize the establishment of management areas for the 
development and implementation of sustainable groundwater management within the 
Basin, and accordingly the Parties acknowledge and agree that the establishment of 
management areas within the Basin is a governance alternative that the Parties may 
explore. 

 
VII. Roles and Responsibilities 

 
A. The Parties agree to jointly establish their roles and responsibilities for implementing a 

GSP or coordinated GSPs for the Basin in accordance with SGMA. 
 

B. The Parties agree to work in good faith and coordinate all activities to carry out the 
purposes of this MOA in implementing the policy, purposes, and requirements of 
SGMA in the Basin. 
 

C. CWD, Banning, BHMWC, and SGPWA, as members of the SGP-GSA, shall coordinate 
with each other to cause all applicable noticing and submission of required information 
to DWR regarding formation of the SGP-GSA. 
 

D. SGPWA shall continue to undertake ongoing CASGEM reporting activities in the Basin 
as provided by terms outside of this MOA. 
 

E. As provided in this MOA, the Parties will continue to meet, confer, coordinate, and 
collaborate to discuss and develop governance, management, technical, financial, and 
other matters, including respective roles and responsibilities for activities such as, but 
not limited to, the following: 
 

i. Modeling; 
ii. Metering; 

iii. Monitoring; 
iv. Hiring consultants; 
v. Developing and maintaining list of interested persons under SGMA Section 

10723.4; 
vi. Budgeting; and 

vii. Other initial tasks as determined by the Parties. 
 

  



- 7 - 
55397.00018\29103215 

VIII. Funding and Budgeting 
 
The Parties agree to cooperate and coordinate in pursuing state and/or federal grant and loan 

funding opportunities that may apply to carrying out SGMA in the Basin.  The Parties shall mutually 
develop reasonable budgets and cost sharing agreements or arrangements for work to be undertaken in 
carrying out SGMA in the Basin. 
 

IX. Stakeholder Access 
 

A. The Parties agree to work together in ensuring public outreach and involvement of the 
public and other interested stakeholders throughout the SGMA process, including but 
not limited to all beneficial uses and users of groundwater as provided in SGMA 
Section 10723.2. 
 

B. The Parties acknowledge, agree, and desire that the preparation, adoption, and 
implementation of one or more GSPs for the Basin, and the ongoing process of ensuring 
compliance with the requirements of SGMA in the Basin, will involve close 
coordination and cooperation with the Morongo Band of Mission Indians. 

 
X. Term, Termination, and Withdrawal 

 
A. Term.  This MOA shall continue and remain in effect unless and until terminated by the 

unanimous written consent of the Parties, or as otherwise provided in this MOA or as 
authorized by law. 
 

B. Withdrawal.  Any Party may decide, in its sole discretion, to withdraw from this MOA 
by providing ninety (90) days written notice to the other Parties.  A Party that 
withdraws from this MOA shall remain obligated to pay its share of costs and expenses 
incurred or accrued under this MOA and any related cost sharing agreement or 
arrangement up to the date the Party provides its notice of withdrawal as provided 
herein.  Withdrawal by a Party shall not cause or require the termination of this MOA or 
the existence of the SGP-GSA with respect to the non-withdrawing Parties. 
 

1. In the event of withdrawal by BHMWC from this MOA and the SGP-GSA, 
CWD, Banning, and SGPWA, as the local agency parties to the SGP-GSA, shall 
meet and confer regarding:  (i) whether the SGP-GSA wishes to retain its GSA 
status over the affected portion of the Basin; (ii) whether one or more of the 
local agency parties of the SGP-GSA wishes to retain GSA status over the 
affected portion of the Basin; or (iii) whether to address the GSA issues in a 
different manner.  Any resolution of such and other GSA issues shall be 
undertaken in a manner that satisfies all requirements of SGMA and DWR, 
including any requirement to file new GSA notices. 
 

2. In the event of withdrawal by CWD, Banning, or SGPWA from this MOA and 
the SGP-GSA, said three local agency parties shall meet and confer regarding 
whether the withdrawing local agency party wishes to seek GSA status for a 
portion of the Basin underlying the service area or management area of the 
withdrawing party.  Said three local agency parties also shall meet and confer 
regarding:  (i) whether the SGP-GSA, or one or both of the non-withdrawing 



- 8 - 
55397.00018\29103215 

local agency parties, wishes to retain GSA status over the affected portion of the 
Basin; (ii) whether to enter a co-GSA management or other arrangement with 
the withdrawing party; or (iii) whether to address the GSA issues in a different 
manner.  Any resolution of such and other GSA issues shall be undertaken in a 
manner that satisfies all requirements of SGMA and DWR, including any 
requirement to file new GSA notices. 
 

3. Any decision by DWA or MSWD not to execute this MOA, or any decision by 
DWA or MSWD to withdraw after executing this MOA shall not cause or 
require the termination of this MOA and shall not affect the formation or 
continued existence of the SGP-GSA. 

 
XI. Notice Provisions 

 
All notices required by this MOA shall be made in writing and delivered to the respective 

representatives of the Parties at their respective addresses as follows: 
  
Banning Heights Mutual Water Company 
President 
7091 Bluff Street 
Banning, CA 92220, Fax: 951-849-6068  

 
City of Banning 
City Manager 
99 East Ramsey Street 
Banning, CA 92220, Fax: 951-922-3128 

 
Cabazon Water District  
General Manager 
14618 Broadway  
P.O. Box 297 
Cabazon, CA 92230, Fax: 951-849-2519 

Desert Water Agency  
General Manager 
1200 S Gene Autry Trail 
Palm Springs, CA 92264, Fax: 760-325-6505 

 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency  
General Manager 
1210 Beaumont Avenue 
Beaumont, CA 92223, Fax: 951-845-0281 
 
Mission Springs Water District 
General Manager 
66575 Second Street 
Desert Hot Springs, CA 92240, Fax: 760-329-2482 

 
Any Party may change the address to which notices are to be given under this MOA by 

providing the other Parties with written notice of such change at least fifteen (15) calendar days prior 
to the effective date of the change.  All notices shall be effective upon receipt and shall be deemed 
received upon confirmed personal service, confirmed facsimile delivery, confirmed courier service, or 
on the fifth (5th) calendar day following deposit of the notice in registered first class mail. 

 
XII. General Terms 

 
A. Amendments.  Amendments to this MOA require unanimous written consent of all 

Parties and approval by the Parties’ respective governing boards; provided, however, 
that amendments to this MOA pertaining to the SGP-GSA only require unanimous 
written consent and board approval of the members of the SGP-GSA. 
 

B. Successors and Assigns.  The terms of this MOA shall be binding upon all successors in 
interest and assigns of each Party; provided, however, that no Party shall assign its 



- 9 - 
55397.00018\29103215 

rights or obligations under this MOA without the signed written consent of all other 
Parties to this MOA. 
 

C. Waiver.  No waiver of any provision of this MOA by any Party shall be construed as a 
further or continuing waiver of such provision or any other provision of this MOA by 
the waiving Party or any other Party. 
 

D. Authorized Representatives.  Each person executing this MOA on behalf of a Party 
hereto affirmatively represents that such person has the requisite authority to sign this 
MOA on behalf of the respective Party. 

 
E. Exemption from CEQA.  The Parties recognize and agree that, pursuant to SGMA 

Section 10728.6 and Public Resources Code Section 21065, neither this MOA nor the 
preparation or adoption of a GSP constitutes a “project” or approval of a project under 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) or the State CEQA Guidelines, and 
therefore this MOA is expressly exempt from CEQA review. 

 
F. Governing Law and Venue.  This MOA shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of California.  Any suit, action, or proceeding 
brought under the scope of this MOA shall be brought and maintained to the extent 
allowed by law in the County of Riverside, California. 

 
G. Attorney’s Fees, Costs, and Expenses.  In the event of a dispute among any or all of the 

Parties arising under this MOA, each Party shall assume and be responsible for its own 
attorney’s fees, costs, and expenses. 

 
H. Entire Agreement/Integration.  This MOA constitutes the entire agreement among the 

Parties regarding the specific provisions of this MOA, and the Parties hereto have made 
no agreements, representations or warranties relating to the specific provisions of this 
MOA which are not set forth herein. 
 

I. Construction and Interpretation.  The Parties agree and acknowledge that this MOA has 
been developed through a negotiated process among the Parties, and that each Party has 
had a full and fair opportunity to review the terms of this MOA with the advice of its 
own legal counsel and to revise the terms of this MOA, such that each Party constitutes 
a drafting Party to this MOA.  Consequently, the Parties understand and agree that no 
rule of construction shall be applied to resolve any ambiguities against any particular 
Party as the drafting Party in construing or interpreting this MOA. 
 

J. Force Majeure.  No Party shall be liable for the consequences of any unforeseeable 
force majeure event that (1) is beyond its reasonable control, (2) is not caused by the 
fault or negligence of such Party, (3) causes such Party to be unable to perform its 
obligations under this MOA, and (4) cannot be overcome by the exercise of due 
diligence.  In the event of the occurrence of a force majeure event, the Party unable to 
perform shall promptly notify the other Parties in writing to the extent practicable.  It 
shall further pursue its best efforts to resume its obligations under this MOA as quickly 
as possible and shall suspend performance only for such period of time as is necessary 
as a result of the force majeure event. 
 



- 10 - 
55397.00018\29103215 

K. Execution in Counterparts.  This MOA may be executed in counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original and all of which when taken together shall constitute one 
and the same instrument. 
 

L. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  This MOA is not intended, and will not be construed, to 
confer a benefit or create any right on a third party or the power or right of any third 
party to bring an action to enforce any of the terms of this MOA. 
 

M. Timing and Captions.  Any provision of this MOA referencing a time, number of days, 
or period for performance shall be measured in calendar days.  The captions of the 
various articles, sections, and paragraphs of this MOA are for convenience and ease of 
reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, content, terms, 
or intent of this MOA. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have approved and executed this MOA as of the 

respective dates specified in the adopting Resolution of each Party as provided above in Article III of 
this MOA. 
 
 

[Signature Pages to Follow] 
 
 
  



- 11 - 
55397.00018\29103215 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have approved and executed this MOA as of the 
respective dates specified in the adopting Resolution of each Party as provided above in Article III of 
this MOA. 

 
 

CITY OF BANNING 
 
 
 
By:  
 
 
  



- 12 - 
55397.00018\29103215 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have approved and executed this MOA as of the 
respective dates specified in the adopting Resolution of each Party as provided above in Article III of 
this MOA. 

 
 

CABAZON WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 
By:  
 
 
  



- 13 - 
55397.00018\29103215 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have approved and executed this MOA as of the 
respective dates specified in the adopting Resolution of each Party as provided above in Article III of 
this MOA. 

 
 

BANNING HEIGHTS MUTUAL WATER COMPANY 
 
 
 
By:  
 
 
  



- 14 - 
55397.00018\29103215 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have approved and executed this MOA as of the 
respective dates specified in the adopting Resolution of each Party as provided above in Article III of 
this MOA. 

 
 

SAN GORGONIO PASS WATER AGENCY 
 
 
 
By:  
 
 
  



- 15 - 
55397.00018\29103215 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have approved and executed this MOA as of the 
respective dates specified in the adopting Resolution of each Party as provided above in Article III of 
this MOA. 

 
 

MISSION SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 
By:  
 
 
  



- 16 - 
55397.00018\29103215 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have approved and executed this MOA as of the 
respective dates specified in the adopting Resolution of each Party as provided above in Article III of 
this MOA. 

 
 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
 
 
 
By:  
 
 



Exhibit ASources: Calif. Dept. of Water Resources, 2016;
Riverside Co. GIS, 2016.

G
:\2

00
8\

08
-0

00
7\

G
IS

\S
G

M
A_

E
x_

A.
m

xd
; M

ap
 re

vi
se

d 
M

ar
ch

 2
, 2

01
7.

San Bernardino Co.
Riverside Co.

·|}þ243

·|}þ60

·|}þ79

§̈¦10

§̈¦10

0 2 4 6
Miles

I

LEGEND
San Gorgonio Pass
Sub-basin (No. 7-21.04)
Beaumont Basin

San Gorgonio Pass Sub-basin



SGP GSA Portion of Sub-basin
Exhibit BSources: Calif. Dept. of Water Resources, 2016; 

LAFCO 2010; Riverside Co. GIS, 2017.

G
:\2

00
8\

08
-0

00
7\

G
IS

\S
G

M
A_

E
x_

B.
m

xd
; M

ap
 re

vi
se

d 
M

ar
ch

 2
, 2

01
7.

San Bernardino Co.
Riverside Co.

·|}þ243

·|}þ79

·|}þ60

§̈¦10

§̈¦10

0 2 4 6
Miles

I

LEGEND
San Gorgonio Pass GSA

Beaumont Basin

SGPWA Boundary

City of Banning Water Dept.

Banning Heights Mutual Water Co.

Cabazon Water District

County Boundary



Desert Water Agency GSA
Exhibit CSources: Calif. Dept. of Water Resources, 2016;

Riverside Co. GIS, 2016.

G
:\2

00
8\

08
-0

00
7\

G
IS

\S
G

M
A_

E
x_

C
.m

xd
; M

ap
 re

vi
se

d 
Fe

b.
 2

4,
 2

01
7.

·|}þ111

§̈¦10

0 1 2 3
Miles

I

LEGEND
San Gorgonio Pass Sub-basin

Desert Water Agency GSA

SGPWA Boundary

Desert Water Agency

Mission Springs Water District



Verbenia GSA
Exhibit DSources: Calif. Dept. of Water Resources, 2016; 

LAFCO 2010; Riverside Co. GIS, 2017.

G
:\2

00
8\

08
-0

00
7\

G
IS

\S
G

M
A_

E
x_

D
.m

xd
; M

ap
 re

vi
se

d 
M

ar
ch

 2
, 2

01
7.

·|}þ111

§̈¦10

0 1 2 3
Miles

I

LEGEND
Verbenia GSA

San Gorgonio Pass Sub-basin

SGPWA Boundary

Mission Springs Water District

Desert Water Agency



6-D 

BOARD/STAFF REPORTS/BBK 

 
 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
MARCH 7, 2017 

 
 
RE: CONSIDER ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 1153 CHANGING 

THE REGULAR ELECTION DATE FROM NOVEMBER ODD 
NUMBERED YEARS TO STATEWIDE ELECTION DATE IN 
NOVEMBER EVEN NUMBERED YEARS 

 
 
As discussed at the February 21, 2017 Board meeting, Senate Bill 415 prohibits a 
political subdivision such as a special district from holding an election other than on a 
statewide election date if holding an election on a non-concurrent date has previously 
resulted in voter turnout for a regularly scheduled election in the political subdivision 
being at least 25% less than the average voter turnout within the political subdivision for 
the previous 4 statewide general elections. 
 
Attached to this report is the  Agency’s voter turnout for the last four elections and also 
the comparable voter turnout numbers for the County and Desert Healthcare District for 
the last four elections held on even numbered years. 
 
Staff was provided the following cost estimate by the Riverside County Registrar of 
Voters office:  

Cost Estimate 
November 7, 2017 Election $130,000 - $140,000 
*Change of Election Notice (for 2018) $22,000 
November 6, 2018 Election $130,000 - $140,000 

 
There is no change in the cost estimate between odd and even election dates because 
the County is taking into account anticipated increase in postage costs, election 
supplies and registered voters. 
 
 
If the change in election date is approved, it is requested that the new election date be 
moved from November 2017 to November 2018 with Board Members whose terms 
would have expired in 2017 being extended to 2018 and Board Members whose terms 
would have expired in 2019 being extended to 2020. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Elections Code Section 10404(i) states that those governing body members whose 
terms of office would have, prior to the adoption of the resolution, expired prior to that 
election shall, instead, continue in their offices until their successors are elected and 
qualified, but in no event shall the term be extended beyond December 31 of the year 
following the year in which the request for consolidation is approved by the board of 
supervisors. 
 
 
Current General Municipal Election Dates 

(3 seats) 
Consolidate with the following potential 
Statewide Election Dates 

November 7, 2017 
 
James Cioffi 
Patricia G. Oygar 
Joseph K. Stuart 

November 6, 2018 (+12 months) 

 
 
 
Current General Municipal Election Dates 

(2 seats) 
Consolidate with the following potential 
Statewide Election Dates 

November 5, 2019 
 
Kristin Bloomer 
Craig A. Ewing 

November 3, 2020 (+12 months) 

 
* Per Election Code 10404 2(f) - Within 30 days after the approval of the resolution, the elections official 
shall notify all registered voters of the district affected by the consolidation of the approval of the 
resolution by the Board of Supervisors. The notice shall be delivered by mail and at the cost of the 
district. 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 1153 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
DESERT WATER AGENCY CHANGING THE REGULAR 
ELECTION DATE FOR ELECTION OF ITS BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS FROM NOVEMBER OF ODD-NUMBERED 
YEARS TO THE STATEWIDE GENERAL ELECTION 
DATE IN NOVEMBER OF EVEN-NUMBERED YEARS 

WHEREAS, currently the regular election date for election of the Board of Directors of 
Desert Water Agency is in November of each odd-numbered year; and  

WHEREAS, the California Voter Participation Rights Act (SB 415) becomes effective 
on January 1, 2018 and prohibits local governmental entities, including special districts, from 
holding a regular election on a date other than on a statewide primary or general election date of 
even-numbered years, if holding a regular election on a non-statewide election date has 
previously resulted in a “significant decrease in voter turnout,” which is defined by SB 415 to 
mean at least 25% less voter turnout than the average voter turnout within the governmental 
entity for the previous four statewide general elections (November of 2010, 2012, 2014 and 
2016); and  

WHEREAS, elections conducted in odd-numbered years historically have resulted in 
lower voter participation and higher expenses to this Agency; and  

WHEREAS, in order to change this Agency’s regular election date to ensure compliance 
with SB 415, Elections Code Section 1303(b) authorizes the Board of Directors at this time to 
adopt a resolution changing the Agency’s regular election date from November of odd-numbered 
years to the statewide general election date in November of even-numbered years; and 

WHEREAS, the resolution must then be submitted to the Riverside County Board of 
Supervisors no later than March 12, 2017, which is at least 240 days before the next Agency 
regular election date, and the resolution must be approved by the Board of Supervisors in order 
to change the Agency’s regular election date; and 

WHEREAS, it is the intent and desire of this Board of Directors to change the Agency’s 
regular election date for election of its Board of Directors from November of odd-numbered 
years to the statewide general election date in November of even-numbered years; and 

WHEREAS, Elections Code Section 10404(i) provides that upon approval by the Board 
of Supervisors, changing the regular election date to November of even-numbered years, current 
Directors continue to serve until their positions are filled by election in the even-numbered year, 
so as to match their terms with a changed regular election date; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Desert Water 
Agency as follows: 

1. Pursuant to Elections Code Sections 1303(b) and 10404(b), the Agency hereby 
chooses to change the Agency’s regular election date for election of the Board of Directors from 



 -2-  

the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November of odd-numbered years to the statewide 
general election date on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November of even-numbered 
years.  

2. Special elections called for the purposes of filling Board vacancies, submitting 
measures to the Agency’s electors for consideration, or other such matters, shall not be affected 
by this resolution and may be conducted on any date authorized by applicable law. 

3. The Riverside County Board of Supervisors is hereby requested to consolidate all 
future Agency regular elections with the statewide general elections to be conducted in 
November of even-numbered years.  The President of this Board of Directors shall be authorized 
to take any and all actions, and to execute any documents necessary, to assist the Agency’s 
General Manager in presenting this resolution to the Riverside County Board of Supervisors for 
its approval. 

4. The Secretary of the Board of Directors of Desert Water Agency shall transmit 
certified copies of this resolution to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors and to the Office of the 
Registrar of Voters for the County of Riverside. 

ADOPTED this 7th day of March, 2017. 

_________________________________________ 
James Cioffi, President  
Desert Water Agency 

 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer  
Desert Water Agency 



 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Sylvia Baca, Secretary of the Board of Directors of Desert Water Agency, do hereby 
certify that the attached is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 1153 adopted by said Board 
of Directors at its regularly scheduled meeting of March 7, 2017. 

______________________________ 
Sylvia Baca 
Secretary of the Board of Directors 
Desert Water Agency 



ELECTIONS-BOARD/Election Log 2007- Current 

DESERT WATER AGENCY – ELECTION STATISTICS 
2009 - 2018 

 
 

Year Candidates Cost Registered 
Voters 

Ballots 
Cast Turnout Notes 

 
2009 
DWA Election 

Oygar 
Starrs 
Cioffi 
Rancano 

$89,627 36,132 12,301 34.04%  

2010 Statewide 
 

Statewide 
 

57.36% 

2011 
DWA Election 

Ewing 
Kieley 
Paduano 

$95,475 37,341 20,045 39.98%  

 
2012 Statewide 
 

Statewide 70.98% 

2013 
DWA Election 

Cioffi 
Paduano 
Oygar 
Stuart 

$103,905 38,916 12,579 32.32%  

 
2014 Statewide 

 
Statewide 40.12% 

2015 
DWA Election 

Bloomer 
Ewing 
Oberhaus 
 

$111,945 37,315 15,762 42.24%  

2016 Statewide 
 

Statewide 
 

75.24% 

2017  
 Cost Estimate: $130,000 - $140,000 

2018  Cost Estimate: $130,000 - $140,000 
  Change of Election Notice: $22,000 

  4 Year Statewide Average = 60.925% 
  4 Year DWA Average = 37.145% 
  Difference =    23.780% 



ELECTIONS-BOARD/DesertHealthcare 2010-2016 

DESERT HEALTHCARE DISTRICT – ELECTION STATISTICS 
2010 - 2016 

 
 

Year Registered 
Voters 

Ballots 
Cast Turnout 

 
 
2010 

 
NO ELECTION 

2010 Statewide 
 

Statewide 
 

57.36% 

 
2012 88,372 66,386 75.12% 

 
2012 Statewide 
 

Statewide 70.98% 

 
2014 85,240 44,526 52.24% 

 
2014 Statewide 

 
Statewide 40.12% 

 
2016 94,853 74,628 78.68% 

2016 Statewide 
 

Statewide 
 

75.24% 

 
4 Year Statewide Average =  60.925% 
4 Year DHCD Average =  51.510% 
Difference =     9.415% 



STAFF RPTS/STEVE 

6-E 
 
     STAFF REPORT  

TO 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
MARCH 7, 2017 

 
 

RE: REQUEST BOARD ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 1154 
ESTABLISHING BACKUP FACILITY CHARGES, SUPPLEMENTAL 
IMPORTED WATER CAPACITY CHARGES, AND SERVICE 
CONNECTION CHARGES 

 
Overview 
 
After a comprehensive review of the existing Backup Facility Charges, Supplemental 
Imported Water Capacity Charges, and Service Connection Charges, staff is requesting 
the Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 1154. 
 
Resolution No. 1154   
 
After reviewing all of the components of the Supplemental Imported Water Capacity 
Charges (SIWCC), staff concluded that no changes be made to the current SIWCC 
values, therefore, the Resolution reflects no changes to these values. 
 
The Resolution adjusts the Backup Facility Charges and Service Connection Charges 
based on revised calculations performed by staff. As required by law, the Desert Valleys 
Builders Association (DVBA) was provided a copy of the proposed changes for review 
and comments. The DVBA had no comments regarding the Service Connection 
Charges, which were adjusted to reflect current material and labor costs. DVBA did, 
however, question the Backup Facility Charge calculations.  Staff reviewed the 
Agency’s methodology and compared it with industry standards.   
 
The current methodology used by the Agency to calculate its Backup Facility Charges  
looks only at the current capacity used by the system.  This methodology has been in 
use by the Agency since the 1970’s when it was first introduced by the Agency’s 
engineering consultant.  It has remained unchanged to provide consistency between 
charges levied on existing and future customers. 
 
After reviewing the current methodology and comparing it with current industry 
standards it is apparent that the methodology needs to be updated.  The method should 
be based on total capacity of the system. As a result of this analysis, staff developed 
new calculations that utilized the total system capacity.  On March 2, 2017, the Agency 
received a letter of support from the DVBA (attached) for the new calculations.  
 
Staff is requesting the Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 1154. 



STAFF RPTS/STEVE 

 

Backup Facility Charge Current Proposed          Approx. %                      
Change 

    
Meter Size Base Zone Base Zone  
    
3/4 x 5/8 $2,400  $2,550  6% 
1 $4,700  $6,375  36% 
1.5 $10,360  $12,750  23% 
2 $21,460  $20,405  -5% 
    
Meter Size A Zone A Zone A Zone 
    
3/4 x 5/8 $5,400  $4,225  -22% 
1 $11,000  $10,570  -4% 
1.5 $21,280  $21,145  -1% 
2 $44,080  $33,835  -23% 
    
Meter Size B Zone B Zone B Zone 
    
3/4 x 5/8 $6,200  $5,760  -7% 
1 $12,500  $14,405  15% 
1.5 $25,200  $28,815  14% 
2 $52,200  $46,105  -12% 
    
Meter Size C Zone C Zone C Zone 
    
3/4 x 5/8 $17,400  $6,245  -64% 
1 $34,900  $15,610  -55% 
1.5 $53,200  $31,225  -41% 
2 $110,200  $49,960  -55% 
    
Service Connection Charge Current Proposed  
    
Service Size    
1 $1,625  $1,800  11% 
2 $2,770  $3,230  17% 
    
Pavement Patch $1,100  $1,380  25% 
Concrete Patch $600  $664  11% 





 

RESOLUTION NO. 1154 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 

ESTABLISHING BACKUP FACILITY, SUPPLEMENTAL 
IMPORTED WATER CAPACITY AND SERVICE  

CONNECTION CHARGES 
 
 

 WHEREAS, by previous action this Board has approved various rates, fees and charges 

for water service, as provided by law; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is appropriate at this time to revise the Agency’s charges for backup 

facility, supplemental imported water capacity and service connection charges; and 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Desert Water 

Agency that the Agency’s charges for backup facility, supplemental imported water capacity and 

service connection charges shall be as follows: 

 

1. Backup Facility Charges.  Every applicant for a regular service connection shall, 

in addition to other charges, pay a Backup Facility Charge based on the size and location 

of the applicant’s service and meter connection as follows: 

 
Meter Charge 

5/8 x 3/4 inch $2,550 
1 inch $6,375 

1-1/2 inch $12,750 
2 inch $20,405 

  
  
  

Zone A Charge 
5/8 x 3/4 inch $4,225 

1 inch $10,570 
1-1/2 inch $21,145 

2 inch $33,835 
  

 
 
 
 
 



 

                                                                                                              Page 2 of 21                                  Resolution No. 1154 
 

 
 
 
 Backup Facility Charges (Cont.) 
 

Zone B Charge 
 5/8 x 3/4 inch   $5,760 
  1 inch $14,405 

  1-1/2 inch $28,815 
  2 inch $46,105 

   
Zone C Charge 

 5/8 x 3/4 inch $6,245 
  1 inch $15,610 

  1-1/2 inch $31,225 
  2 inch $49,960 

  
 

2. Supplemental Imported Water Capacity Charges.  Every applicant for a regular 

service connection shall, in addition to other charges, pay a Supplemental Imported 

Water Capacity Charge based on the size of the applicant’s service and meter connection 

as follows: 

Meter Size 
 

 

Residential Charge 

5/8 x 3/4 inch $1,370.00 
1 inch $2,250.00 

1-1/2 inch $4,440.00 
2 inch $10,960.00 
3 inch $72,070.00 

   
Commercial Charge 

 5/8 x 3/4 inch $1,250.00 
 1 inch $2,740.00 

 1-1/2 inch $8,830.00 
 2 inch $15,090.00 
 3 inch $21,350.00 
 6 inch $677,430.00 

   
   
   

Irrigation 

  
 

 Charge 

 

5/8 x 3/4 inch  $1,720.00  
1 inch  $6,530.00  

1-1/2 inch  $25,210.00  
2 inch  $23,970.00  



 

                                                                                                              Page 3 of 21                                  Resolution No. 1154 
 

 3. Backup Facility Charges and Supplemental Imported Water Capacity Charges  for 

Increased Service.  A Backup Facility Charge and a Supplemental Imported Water 

Capacity Charge shall be required for all existing regular service connections for which 

increased capacity is requested and larger service connections and meters are installed.  

Said charges shall apply to the difference in service capacity between the new meter and 

service, and the meter and service which is being replaced. 

 

4. Exemption.  The Backup Facility Charge shall apply to all applications for regular 

service, regardless of the type of use, but shall not apply to applications for temporary 

service.   The Backup Facility Charge may be exempted, or partially exempted for private 

commercial fire protection service, and where certain water supply, storage, treatment 

and transmission facilities are required of an applicant.  The exemption will be 

determined by the Agency, whose decision will be final. 

 

 5. Accounting of Funds.   All revenues collected from backup facility charges shall 

be deposited with other such fees in a separate capital facilities account or fund in a 

manner to avoid any commingling of the charges with other revenues and funds of the 

Agency, except for temporary investments, and such revenues may be expended solely 

for the purpose for which the backup facility charges are collected.  Any interest income 

earned by moneys in said account or fund shall also be deposited in that account or fund 

and may be expended only for the purpose for which the backup facility charges are 

imposed.  The Agency shall make findings once each fiscal year with respect to any 

portion of the backup facility charges remaining unexpended or uncommitted in the 

account five or more years after deposit of the charges.  The findings shall identify the 

purpose to which the backup facility charges are to be put, and will demonstrate a 

reasonable relationship between the charges and the purpose for which the charges were 

imposed.   

 

 

 

 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 4 of 21                                  Resolution No. 1154 
 

6. Service Connection Charge.  The charge for service connection shall be as 

follows: 
 

Size Charge 
   a.) 1 inch $1,800.00 
 2 inch $3,230.00 
   
   b.) Pavement Patch $1,380.00 
 Concrete Patch $664.00 

 

7. Connection Charge.    A charge for all new connections based on the front footage 

served thereby shall be levied and collected at the rate of $70.00 per lineal foot of 

frontage, or the actual rate in accordance with a valid main extension refund agreement, 

whichever is greater. 

 

8. Effective Date:  The charges set forth herein shall become effective on March 7, 

2017. 

  

 ADOPTED this 7th day of March 2017.  

 
       ______________________________ 
       James Cioffi, President 
       Board of Directors 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

                                                                                                              Page 5 of 21                                  Resolution No. 1154 
 

 
 

BACKUP FACILITY CHARGES 
FOR WATER SERVICE 

MARCH 7, 2017 
 
 
New development creates an additional demand for water.  In order to meet the new demand, 

new wells must be constructed to provide more water, new storage tanks must be constructed to 

store water for emergency use, equalizing, and fire storage, and new transmission pipelines must 

be constructed to transport water from wells to storage tanks and throughout the distribution 

system.  New development in hillside areas and service areas above the Base Zone places 

demand upon facilities, such as booster pumping plants, water storage tanks and transmission 

pipelines, whose basic function is to lift the water up to and store in these higher zones. 

 

For the past eight years, new development has added an annual average of about 400 service 

connections to the Desert Water Agency water system.  At this growth rate, every three years 

new connections will create a demand for water equivalent to the production capacity of one 

well.  The increased demand will also burden storage, transmission, and booster pumping 

facilities in all Zones.  These facilities must be in place ahead of new connections.  Therefore, in 

most cases, the facilities are constructed in anticipation of demand, and costs of the facilities are 

recovered through the Backup Facility Charge. 

 

Staff has reviewed the costs that make up the Backup Facility Charge and find that a tiered rate is 

justified to recover cost of the well plants, booster plants, treatment plants, surface water 

facilities, storage reservoirs, and transmission mains required by each zone. 

 

All new development requiring water service will be charged for Backup Facilities.  The charge 

is based upon the capacity/service size ratio of the service provided and the proportional 

potential demand placed upon the available water production, transmission, treatment, pressure 

boosting and storage facilities.  The charge is not based upon the type of service connection (i.e., 

residential, commercial, and industrial).  The amount of the charge for any particular 

development is based on the number of services, service size, meter size and the assigned 



 

                                                                                                              Page 6 of 21                                  Resolution No. 1154 
 

number of capacity units per service as determined by the Agency.  The capacity unit (C.U.) is 

based on the capacity/service size ratio of the service connection. 

 

Service capacity ratios have historically been based on the relationship between capacity and 

pipe diameter.  Originally established in 1973, the service capacity/diameter relationship for the 

Agency was based on a 1” service size capacity ratio of Q=KD^2.54.  Depending on the specific 

hydraulic formula selected the service size relationship can range from D^2.5 to D^2.667.  These 

hydraulic formula and capacity/diameter relationships are empirical and therefore approximate.  

The selected relationship of D^2.54 is reasonable in that it is slightly less than the median 

relationship of D^2.58. 

 

However, capacity is ultimately limited by the maximum continuous operation flow rate of the 

meter installed on each service connection. To account for this, the Agency has opted to utilize 

the AWWA meter factors in lieu of the abovementioned D^2.54 formula. AWWA meter factors 

are an industry standard and, therefore, a reasonable method to use in determining equivalent 

capacity units within the system. 

 

To determine the standard capacity for the Agency’s entire water system all active services 

smaller and larger than the standard one-inch service are converted to one-inch equivalent 

capacity units using the AWWA meter factors discussed above.   

 

Calculation of the C.U. for each service size in the Agency’s system is shown in the table below. 

 

SYSTEM CAPACITY UNITS 

SERVICE 
SIZE SERVICES AWWA METER FACTORS CAPACITY UNITS 

5/8” X 3/4” 210 0.40 84 

1” 18,565 1.00 18,565 

1-1/2” 862 2.00 1,724 

2” 2,975 3.20 9,520 

Total 22,612  29,893 

 

The charge per capacity unit is obtained by determining the cost of water production, pressure 

boosting, treatment, storage and transmission facilities and dividing it by the total capacity units 



 

                                                                                                              Page 7 of 21                                  Resolution No. 1154 
 

served by the facilities.  The method for determining facility cost and total capacity units is 

discussed below. 

 

The total number of current capacity units of each zone is obtained from the Desert Water 

Agency Information Systems Department. 

 

ZONES 
EXISTING CAPACITY UNITS 

WITHIN ZONE 
 

BASE 

 

28,125 

A 1,282 

B 468 

C 18 

TOTAL 29,893 

 

To determine the total capacity units for each zone, we must first calculate the max demand day 

(MDD) value utilizing the current General Plan formula: 

• MDD = 1.85 x Average Day Annual Demand (ADD)  

Using annual production data from 2010 to 2013 (years that were not affected by State mandated 

drought conservation requirements), the ADD calculated equals 32.6 MGD, therefore, the MDD 

is equal to 60.3 MGD. If the MDD is equal to 60.3 MGD, the current gal/C.U./day is equal to 

2,017 gal/C.U./day (60.3MGD÷29,893).  

 

Since all service capacity must be met by the Base system pumping capacity, the current max 

demand on the Base system is equal to the MDD, or 60.3 MGD. The current pumping capacity 

for the Base system is 76.7 MGD, therefore, all of the existing units are using 78.6% of the total 

capacity of the Base system (60.3 MGD÷76.7 MGD). The total maximum capacity units for the 

entire system are then equal to 38,031 (29,893÷0.786). 

 

The current demand on Zone A is 2.58 MGD (2,017 x 1,282). The current pumping capacity for 

Zone A is 7.70 MGD, therefore, the existing Zone A units are using 33.5% of the total pumping 

capacity of Zone A (2.58 MGD÷7.70 MGD). The total Zone A capacity units are then equal to 

3,826 (1,282÷0.335).  



 

                                                                                                              Page 8 of 21                                  Resolution No. 1154 
 

 

The current demand on Zone B is 0.94 MGD (2,017 x 468). The current pumping capacity for 

Zone B is 0.79 MGD, therefore, the existing Zone B units are using 118% of the total pumping 

capacity of Zone B (0.94 MGD÷0.79 MGD). The total Zone B capacity units are then equal to 

396 (468÷1.18), which is 72 units less than the existing amount of 468 units; therefore, Zone B 

requires additional pumping capacity to accommodate the additional 72 units. The amount of 

pumping capacity required is equal to 100 gpm (72 CU x 2,017 gal/CU/Day ÷ 1,440 min/day). 

The additional pumping capacity can be achieved by a 20 HP pump. Using the current cost of 

$3,869/HP for Zone B, this additional 20 HP will cost $77,380 and will be added to the Zone B 

total pumping costs.  

 

The current demand on Zone C is 0.036 MGD (2,017 x 18). The current pumping capacity for 

Zone C is 0.43 MGD, therefore, the existing Zone C units are using 8.3% of the total pumping 

capacity of Zone C (0.036MGD÷0.43MGD). The total Zone C capacity units are then equal to 

216 (18÷0.083). 

 

ZONES 
TOTAL CAPACITY UNITS 

WITHIN ZONE 
TOTAL CAPACITY UNITS 

SERVED PER ZONE 
 

BASE 33,719 

 

38,031 

A 3,826 4,294  

B 468 684 

C 216 216 

TOTAL 38,031  

  

 

Facility costs per zone were determined by analyzing facility cost valuation from Agency Annual 

Operating Statistics Reports, cost estimates prepared in conjunction with the currently proposed 

budget and rate study, and by assessing the current facilities inventory by zone using the 2008 

General Plan Update.  The facilities cost valuation per capacity unit was determined from the 

total number of capacity units and the facilities costs per zone. 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 9 of 21                                  Resolution No. 1154 
 

The proposed Backup Facility Charge consists of a Base-Zone Charge and successively higher 

tiered charges for each pumped zone supplied from the Base-Zone and any additional zone 

supplying water to a higher zone.  The A-Zone receives all of its water supply from facilities in 

the Base-Zone, the B-Zone receives all of its water supply from facilities in the A-Zone, and the 

C-Zone receives all of its water supply from facilities in the B-Zone.  Water is booster-pumped 

through each successive zone to get to its final destination. 

 

The Base Zone charge is composed of costs per capacity unit for production (wells and surface 

water supply), storage, pressure boosting, treatment and transmission facilities assignable to 

Base-Zone service. 

 

 

PUMPING/WATER PRODUCTION COST 

 

In order to calculate the cost of pumping water per capacity unit we first determine the cost of 

those facilities from approved capital improvement budgets.  The ratio of plant cost to 

horsepower is determined. 

 

DESCRIPTION 
YEAR 

CONSTRUCTED 
PUMPING PLANT 

HORSEPOWER 
PUMPING PLANT 

COST* 
 

Well 39 

 

2010 

 

450 HP Pumping Plant 

 

$1,320,156.59 

Well 40 2009 450 HP Pumping Plant $1,498,356.82 

Well 41 2006 450 HP Pumping Plant $1,561,858.76 

Well 42 2006 200 HP Pumping Plant $1,175,156.15 

TOTAL  1,550 HP $5,555,528.32 

* Current Capital Improvement Budget Amounts for Pumping Plants. 

 

The most current pumping plant estimated costs are used to determine the ratio of pumping plant 

cost to unit of horsepower from the table above.  The unit cost of pumping per horsepower is 

$5,555,528.32/1,550 hp= $3,584/hp.  By applying this ratio to each active pumping plant the cost 

of each plant and the entire system pumping cost is determined by zone. 

Similarly, the cost of pressure boosting facilities is determined. 



 

                                                                                                              Page 10 of 21                                  Resolution No. 1154 
 

 

DESCRIPTION 
YEAR 

CONSTRUCTED 
BOOSTER PLANT 

HORSEPOWER 
BOOSTER 

PLANT COST* 
 

Zone 1240 Booster 
 2016 

 

80 HP Booster Plant 

 

$950,000 

Janis Tuscany 
Booster Upgrades 

2016 225 HP Booster 
Pumping Plant $230,000 

TOTAL  305 HP $1,180,000 

* Actual project costs, unadjusted for present value. 

 

The most current pumping plant costs are used to determine the ratio of booster pumping plant 

cost to unit of horsepower from the table above.  The unit cost of booster pumping per 

horsepower is $1,180,000/305 hp= $3,869/hp.  By applying this ratio to each active pumping 

plant the cost of each plant and the entire system booster pumping cost is determined by zone.  

However, when available the actual cost of the plant is used below in lieu of the unit costs. 

BASE-ZONE PUMPING COSTS 

WELL/BOOSTER 
BASE ZONES DESCRIPTION 

PLANT HORSE
POWER 

ZONE PUMPING 
COST ($3,584/HP) 

Palm Springs Well Pumping Plants 7,670 $27,489,280 

Chino Well Pumping Plants 1,100 $3,942,400 

Chino Booster Pumping Plants 475 $1,837,775* 

East Well Pumping Plants 2,750 $9,856,000 

TOTAL   $43,125,455 

*$3,869/HP Unit Cost of Booster Pumping Per Horsepower. 

 

A-ZONE PUMPING COSTS 

WELL/BOOSTER 
A-ZONE DESCRIPTION 

PLANT 
HORSEPOWER 

ZONE PUMPING 
COST ($3,869/HP) 

Andreas Hills Acanto Booster 300 $1,160,700 

Janis Tuscany Janis Tuscany Booster 150 $580,350 

Terrace Terrace Booster 45 $174,105 

Palm Oasis Well 17  Pumping Plant 150 $537,600* 

Palm Oasis Well 17 Booster 80 $309,520 

TOTAL   $2,762,275 

*$3,584/HP Unit Cost of Well Pumping Per Horsepower. 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 11 of 21                                  Resolution No. 1154 
 

B-ZONE PUMPING COSTS 

WELL/BOOSTER 
B-ZONE DESCRIPTION 

PLANT 
HORSEPOWER 

ZONE PUMPING 
COST ($3,869/HP) 

Lower Southridge Araby Booster 50 $193,450 

Foothill Foothill Booster 60 $232,140 

Chino West Zone 1240 Booster 50 $193,450 

Additional  Capacity Needs 20 $77,380 

TOTAL   $696,420 

 

 

C-ZONE PUMPING COSTS 

WELL/BOOSTER 
C-ZONE DESCRIPTION 

PLANT 
HORSEPOWER 

ZONE 
PUMPING COST 

(ACTUAL) 
Upper Southridge Southridge-2 

Booster 
90 *$260,477 

TOTAL   $260,477 

*Actual cost of contract ($2,894/HP Unit Cost) 

 

PUMPING COST PER ZONE SUMMARY 

 

ZONE 

PUMPING 
COSTS 

WITHIN 
ZONE 

CAPACITY 
UNITS 

SERVED BY 
ZONE 

CAPACITY 
UNIT COSTS  

WITHIN 
ZONE 

CUMULATIVE 
CAPACITY UNIT 
PUMPING COST 

PER ZONE 
BASE $43,125,455 38,031 $1,133 $1,133 

A $2,762,275 4,294 $643 $1,776 

B $696,420 684 $1,018 $2,794 

C $260,477 216 $1,205 $3,999 

 

The cumulative capacity unit pumping cost in the Base-Zone is the cost of pumping in the base 

zone divided by the total system capacity unit because the entire system including the upper 

zones benefit from the pumping done in the Base-Zone.  This unit cost is passed onto all zones.  

The cumulative cost pumping in the elevated Zones is the accumulated cost from each zone the 

water was pumped through. 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 12 of 21                                  Resolution No. 1154 
 

WATER TREATMENT COSTS 

 

In order to calculate the cost of water treatment per capacity unit we first determine the cost of 

those facilities from actual project costs.  Only water in the Base-Zone is treated.  However, this 

water is used in the Base-Zone and all elevated zones. 

 

FOREBAY TREATMENT 
 

DESCRIPTION 
YEAR CONSTR

UCTED *FOREBAY COST 
Well 14 Forebay 1993 $376,750 

Well 16 Forebay 1993 $376,750 

TOTAL  $753,500 

*Based on $2.75/gallon input value. 

 

The cost of forebay treatment per capacity unit is therefore, $753,500/38,031 C.U.=$20/C.U. 

 

UV TREATMENT 
 

DESCRIPTION 
YEAR CONSTR

UCTED *FOREBAY COST 
UV Treatment (Snow Creek/Falls Creek) 2014 $317,142 

TOTAL  $317,142 

*Actual project costs. 

 

The cost of UV treatment per capacity unit is therefore, $317,142/38,031 C.U.=$8/C.U. 

 

CHLORINE INJECTION TREATMENT 
 

DESCRIPTION 
NUMBER OF 

ACTIVE SITES 
AVG. COST 
PER SITE 

ZONE PUMPING 
COST (ACTUAL) 

Chlorine storage building and 
pad, injection vault 

9 $30,440 $273,960 

TOTAL    $273,960 
*Based on average construction cost per site to install chlorine injection facilities. 

The cost of chlorine injection treatment per capacity unit is therefore, $273,960/38,031 
C.U.=$7/C.U. 
 



 

                                                                                                              Page 13 of 21                                  Resolution No. 1154 
 

TREATMENT COST PER ZONE SUMMARY 
 

ZONE 

FOREBAY 
TREATMENT 

COST 
PER ZONE 

UV 
TREATMENT 

COST PER 
ZONE 

CHLORINE 
INJECTION 

TREATMENT 
COST PER ZONE 

TOTAL 
TREATMENT 

COST PER 
ZONE 

BASE  $20 $8 $7 $35 

A $20 $8 $7 $35 

B $20 $8 $7 $35 

C $20 $8 $7 $35 

 

 

SURFACE WATER (STREAM) COSTS 

 
In order to calculate the cost of surface water per capacity unit we first determine the cost of 

those facilities from actual project costs.  Surface water is transmitted from the diversions into 

the Base-Zones where it is transmitted to all elevated zones. 

 

DESCRIPTION 
YEAR 

CONSTRUCTED 
*SURFACE WATER 

FACILITY COST 
Snow Creek Diversion 1990 $2,000,000 

Falls Creek Diversion 1990 $1,300,000 

Chino North Diversion 1991 $458,000 

TOTAL  $3,758,000 

* Actual project costs, unadjusted for present value. 

The cost of treatment per capacity unit is therefore, $3,758,000/38,031 C.U.=$98/C.U. 

 

The surface water capacity unit cost per zone is as follows: 

 

ZONE 
COST OF TREATMENT 
PER CAPACITY UNIT 

BASE ZONE $98 

A-ZONE $98 

B-ZONE $98 

C-ZONE $98 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 14 of 21                                  Resolution No. 1154 
 

WATER STORAGE COSTS 

  

In order to calculate the cost of water storage per capacity unit we first determine the cost of 

those facilities from actual project costs and approved capital improvement budgets.  The ratio of 

storage cost to volume is determined. 

 

DESCRIPTION 
YEAR 

CONSTRUCTED 
RESERVOIR 

STORAGE CAPACITY RESERVOIR COST* 
Tahquitz 

Reservoir II 
2004 5,000,000 gallons $2,299,785** 

Zone 1060 2016 500,000 gallons $1,544,800* 

TOTAL  5,500,000 gallons $3,844,585 

*Revised Budget Amount for project. 

** Actual project costs, unadjusted for present value. 

 

The most current water storage estimated costs are used to determine the ratio of water storage 

cost to unit of storage volume from the table above.  The unit cost of water storage per gallon is 

$3,844,585/5,500,000 GAL= $0.70/GAL.  By applying this ratio to each water storage reservoir, 

the cost of each reservoir and the entire system water storage costs are determined by zone. 

 

FUTURE STORAGE CAPACITY REQUIREMENTS  

 

The General Plan requires that the Agency have 18 hours ADD emergency storage, along with 

fire flow and equalization storage during energy Time of Use (T.O.U.) periods. The 18 hour 

ADD during T.O.U periods is 28 MG. The fire flow requirement for the system is 6.48 MG and 

the equalization, or operational storage is 40% of the MDD and is therefore equal to 24.1 MG. 

Adding all of these components equates to 58.58 MG of storage. The current storage capacity for 

the system is 58.85 MG, therefore, additional storage must be constructed. 

 

The existing pumping capacity of the system will accommodate an additional 8,138 capacity 

units (38,031 – 29,893). These additional units will add 16.4 MGD to the MDD. This additional 

demand will increase the storage requirement to 73 MG, requiring 14 MG of additional storage 

(73-58.85). The cost for the additional storage will be $9,800,000 ($0.70/gal x 14 MG). This 

additional storage cost will be added to the Base Zone. 



 

                                                                                                              Page 15 of 21                                  Resolution No. 1154 
 

 

BASE-ZONE WATER STORAGE COSTS 

DESCRIPTION 

WATER 
STORAGE CAPACI

TY (GAL.) 

UNIT COST PER 
UNIT STORAGE 

($/GAL.) 
ZONE STORAGE 

COST 
Palm Springs Main 34,650,000 0.70 $24,255,000 

Palm Springs Chino 7,300,000 0.70 $5,110,000 

Palm Springs East 
 

10,000,000 0.70 $7,000,000 

Additional Storage 14,000,000 0.70 $9,800,000 

TOTAL   $46,165,000 

 

 

 

A-ZONE WATER STORAGE COSTS 

DESCRIPTION 
WATER STORAGE 
CAPACITY (GAL.) 

UNIT COST PER 
UNIT 

STORAGE ($/GAL.) 
ZONE STORAGE 

COST 
Andreas Hills 3,000,000 0.70 $2,100,000 

Janis Tuscany 0.00 0.70 $0.00 

Terrace 725,000 0.70 $507,500 

Palm Oasis 2,050,000 0.70 $1,435,000 

Chino West 500,000 3.00* $1,500,000* 

TOTAL   $5,542,500 

*Actual project costs. 

 

 

 

B-ZONE WATER STORAGE COSTS 

DESCRIPTION 

WATER 
STORAGE CAPACI

TY (GAL.) 

UNIT COST PER 
UNIT STORAGE 

($/GAL.) 
ZONE 

STORAGE COST 
Lower Southridge 400,000 0.70 $280,000 

Foothill 600,000 0.70 $420,000 

TOTAL   $700,000 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 16 of 21                                  Resolution No. 1154 
 

 

 

C-ZONE WATER STORAGE COSTS 

DESCRIPTION 
WATER STORAGE 
CAPACITY (GAL.) 

UNIT COST PER 
UNIT STORAGE 

($/GAL.) 
ZONE 

STORAGE COST 
Upper Southridge 0.00 0.70 $0.00 

TOTAL   $0.00 

 

 

STORAGE COST  PER ZONE SUMMARY 
 

ZONE 

STORAGE 
COSTS 

WITHIN ZON
E 

CAPACITY 
UNITS 

SERVED BY 
ZONE 

CAPACITY 
UNIT COSTS  

WITHIN 
ZONE 

CUMULATIVE 
CAPACITY UNIT 

STORAGE 
COST PER ZONE 

BASE  $46,165,000 38,031 $1,213 $1,213 

A-ZONE $5,542,500 4,294 $1,290 $2,503 

B-ZONE $700,000 684 $1,023 $3,526 

C-ZONE $0.00 216 $0.00 $3,526 

 

The cumulative capacity unit storage cost in the Base-Zone is the cost of storage in the Base-

Zone divided by the total system capacity unit because the entire system including the upper 

zones benefit from the storage in the Base-Zone.  This unit cost is passed onto all zones.  The 

cumulative cost storage in the elevated zones is the accumulated cost from each zone the water 

was stored in, and then pumped out from. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 17 of 21                                  Resolution No. 1154 
 

 

WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN COSTS 

 

Historically, the Agency has calculated the cost of water transmission mains per capacity unit by 

determining the cost of those facilities from actual project costs and approved capital 

improvement budgets.  The ratio of cost per lineal foot to diameter is determined. 

 

 

DESCRIPTION 
YEAR CONSTR

UCTED 

PIPELINE 
LENGTH 

(L.F.) 
*PIPELINE 

COST 

PIPELINE 
UNIT COST 

($/L.F.) 
12”Alejo/Tamarisk/ 

Indian Canyon 
2012/2014/2015 4,958 $1,290,176 $260/L.F. 

14” - - - - 

15” - - - - 

16” Sunny Dunes 2013 1,100 $301,462 $274/L.F. 

18” - - - - 

20” E. Well Field - - - - 

24” E. Well Field - - - - 

26” - - - - 

30” N. Well Field - - - - 

36” Avenida Caballeros 2014/2015 2,659 $2,509,219 $944/L.F. 

42” - - - - 
* Actual project cost, unadjusted for present value. 

 

 

Due to the lack of current data available for the varying sizes of transmission mains in our 

system, the Agency has opted to utilize a “unit construction cost for pipelines” equation used by 

Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD) in their 2015 rate study (study conducted by 

Kennedy/Jenks Consultants). Said equation assumes that unit cost ($/linear foot) = Diameter 

(inch) x 40.47 x [Diameter (inch) ^-0.309]. Utilization of said equation allows the Agency to 

determine uniform unit construction estimates for all sizes of transmission mains in our system. 

 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 18 of 21                                  Resolution No. 1154 
 

 

 

*ESTIMATED WATER TRANSMISSION  
MAIN UNIT CONSTRUCTION COSTS 
TRANSMISSION 

MAIN DIAMETER 
(INCHES) 

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN 

LENGTH ($/L.F.) 
12” 225 

14” 250 

15” 265 

16” 275 

18” 300 

20” 320 

24” 365 

26” 385 

30” 425 

36” 480 

42” 535 

  
*Based on the following EMWD assumption: cost $/L.F. = Diameter (inch) x 40.47 x [Diameter (inch) ^-0.309]. 

 

The most current water transmission main estimated costs are used to determine the ratio of 

water main cost to diameter as shown in the table on the previous page.  By applying these ratios 

to system transmission mains, the cost of all size mains for the entire system is determined by 

zone. 

 

FUTURE TRANSMISSION MAIN COSTS 

 

It is anticipated that the additional storage facilities will require approximately 1 mile of new 24” 

diameter transmission main. The cost of future transmission main is equal to $365/L.F. x 5,280 

L.F. = $1,927,000, to be added to the Base Zone total. 

 

 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 19 of 21                                  Resolution No. 1154 
 

 

BASE-ZONE WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN COSTS 

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN DIAMETER 

(INCHES) 

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN 

LENGTH (L.F.) 

UNIT COST PER 
UNIT 

LENGTH ($/L.F.) 

ZONE 
TRANSMISSION 

MAIN COST 
12”  *222,839 225 $50,138,775 

14” 2,430 250 $607,500 

15” 940 265 $249,100 

16” 34,359 275 $9,448,725 

18” 5,252 300 $1,575,600 

20” 24,228 320 $7,752,960 

24” 99,712 365 $36,394,880 

24” future 5,280 365 $1,927,000 

26” 2,620 385 $1,008,700 

30” 57,433 425 $24,409,025 

36” 30,618 480 $14,696,640 

42” 70 535 $37,450 

TOTAL   $148,246,355 
*Approximately 60% of all 12” mains in the system are transmission mains with the remaining 40% being 
distribution mains. Therefore, only 60% of the total 12” mains are included in the above table. 
 

A-ZONE WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN COSTS 

TRANSMISSION MA
IN 

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN 

DIAMETER 
(INCHES) 

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN 

LENGTH 
(L.F.) 

UNIT 
COST 

PER UNIT 
LENGTH 

($/L.F.) 

ZONE 
TRANSMISSION 

MAIN COST 
Andreas Hills 12” *5,323 225 $1,197,675 

Andreas Hills 16” 6,832 275 $1,878,800 

Janis Tuscany 12” 4,626 225 $1,040,850 

Janis Tuscany 16” 3,782 275 $1,040,050 

Janis Tuscany 24” 1,450 365 $529,250 

Terrace 12” *2,526 225 $568,350 

Palm Oasis 12” *10,280 225 $2,313,000 

Palm Oasis 16” 4,200 275 $1,155,000 

TOTAL    $9,722,975 



 

                                                                                                              Page 20 of 21                                  Resolution No. 1154 
 

*Approximately 60% of all 12” mains in the system are transmission mains with the remaining 40% being 
distribution mains. Therefore, only 60% of the total 12” mains are included in the above table. 

B-ZONE WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN COSTS 

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN 

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN 

DIAMETER 
(INCHES) 

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN LENGTH 

(L.F.) 

UNIT 
COST 

PER UNIT 
LENGTH (

$/L.F.) 

ZONE 
TRANSMISSION 

MAIN COST 
Foothill *12” 2,690 225 $605,250 

Chino West *12” 2,762 225 $621,450 

TOTAL    $1,226,700 

*Approximately 60% of all 12” mains in the system are transmission mains with the remaining 40% being 
distribution mains. Therefore, only 60% of the total 12” mains are included in the above table. 
 
 

C-ZONE WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN COSTS 

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN 

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN 

DIAMETER (INC
HES) 

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN 

LENGTH (L.F.) 

UNIT 
COST PER 

UNIT 
LENGTH 

($/L.F.) 

ZONE 
TRANSMISSION 

MAIN COST 
None 0 0 $0 $0 

TOTAL    $0 

 

TRANSMISSION MAIN COST PER ZONE SUMMARY 

ZONE 

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN 

COSTS WITHIN 
ZONE 

CAPACITY 
UNITS 

SERVED BY 
ZONE 

CAPACITY 
UNIT COSTS  

WITHIN 
ZONE 

CUMULATIVE 
CAPACITY UNIT 
STORAGE COST 

PER ZONE 
Base $148,246,355 38,031 $3,898 $3,898 

A-Zone $9,722,975 4,294 $2,264 $6,162 

B-Zone $1,226,700 684 $1,793 $7,955 

C-Zone $0 216 $0 $7,955 

 

The cumulative capacity unit water transmission main cost in the Base-Zone is the cost of water 

transmission in the Base-Zone divided by the total system capacity unit because the entire system 

including the upper zones benefit from water transmission in the Base-Zone.  This unit cost is 

passed onto all zones.  The cumulative cost water transmission in the elevated zones is the 



 

                                                                                                              Page 21 of 21                                  Resolution No. 1154 
 

accumulated cost from each zone the water was transmitted to and then pumped out from that 

zone. 

The cost of a 1-inch service in each of the Agency zones are comprised of the cumulative 

capacity unit costs for water production (wells), pressure boosting (boosters), treatment, storage 

and transmission facilities. 

COST PER ZONE SUMMARY 

ZONES 
PUMPING  

COST 
TREATMENT 

 COST 
STORAGE 

 COST 
TRANSMISSION 

 COST 

SURFACE 
WATER 
 COST 

TOTAL 
CAPACITY 
UNIT COST 

BASE $1,133 $35 $1,213 $3,898 $98 $6,377 

A $1,776 $35 $2,503 $6,162 $98 $10,574 

B $2,794 $35 $3,526 $7,955 $98 $14,408 

C $3,999 $35 $3,526 $7,955 $98 $15,613 

 

In order to determine the capacity unit cost for each meter size the AWWA meter factors are 

used.  The table below shows the capacity unit charge (Backup Facility Charge) per meter size. 

 

METER SIZE 
AWWA METER 

FACTOR BASE-ZONE A-ZONE B-ZONE C-ZONE 
3/4 X 5/8 0.4 $2,550 $4,229 $5,763 $6,245 

1 1.0 $6,377 $10,574 $14,408 $15,613 

1.5 2.0 $12,754 $21,148 $28,816 $31,226 

2 3.2 $20,406 $33,836 $46,105 $49,961 

 

FINAL BACKUP FACILITY CHARGE COST SUMMARY 

METER SIZE 
AWWA METER 

FACTOR BASE-ZONE A-ZONE B-ZONE C-ZONE 
3/4 X 5/8 0.4 $2,550 $4,225 $5,760 $6,245 

1 1.0 $6,375 $10,570 $14,405 $15,610 

1.5 2.0 $12,750 $21,145 $28,815 $31,225 

2 3.2 $20,405 $33,835 $46,105 $49,960 

 



6-F 
STAFF REPORT 

TO 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
   MARCH 7, 2017 

 
RE: REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION TO CALL FOR BIDS FOR 

CONSTRUCTION OF 2016/2017 REPLACEMENT PIPELINES 
(W PASEO EL MIRADOR, E PASEO EL MIRADOR, 
PASATIEMPO RD, LINDA VISTA RD, BROADMOOR DR, 
STEVENS RD, W CAMINO NORTE, VIA MONTE VISTA, E 
CAMINO NORTE, N VINE AVE, AND SUNNY DUNES RD) 

 
The 2016/2017 Capital Improvement Budget includes Work Order No. 16-160 for 
replacement pipelines (approximately 12,400 linear feet of 8” ductile iron pipe). 
The budget amount for the work order is $3,372,600.00 to include engineering, 
construction, inspection and overhead costs. The Engineer’s construction cost 
estimate for the project is $2,727,500, with an estimated inspection cost of 
$410,000 and estimated Agency labor cost of $190,000. 
 
The attached map shows the location(s) for the replacement pipelines within 
several streets throughout the Palm Springs area. All of the pipelines have 
exhibited several leak occurrences over the past couple of years, are unlined 
steel mains, and have an average age of 67 years. 
 
Staff has also determined that the age (78 years) and frequent leaks on Sunny 
Dunes Road, which have drastically increased as a result of recent City of Palm 
Springs paving rehabilitation work within the area, necessitates adding said main 
to the replacement project (approximately 1,000 linear feet of 16” ductile iron pipe 
and 100 linear feet of 8” ductile iron pipe). The Engineer’s construction cost 
estimate for Sunny Dunes Road is $385,600, with an estimated inspection cost of 
$57,500 and estimated Agency labor cost of $27,000. Staff will evaluate the bids 
to determine a budget augmentation amount that will cover the costs to facilitate 
this work. The Sunny Dunes Road mainline replacement has been included in 
the abovementioned map as well. 
 
With authorization being granted today, the bid opening for the project will 
tentatively be held on April 11, 2017 with the Contract award scheduled for the 
meeting of the Board of Directors on April 18, 2017. Work is expected to 
commence in June 2017, with completion expected in early November 2017. 
 
Staff requests authorization to advertise for bids for construction of the 
2016/2017 replacement pipelines. 











6-G 
 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
MARCH 7, 2017 

 
 
 

RE: REQUEST ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 1155 STATUTORY 
PASS-THROUGH PAYMENTS 

 
 
Staff received correspondence from the County of Riverside in regards to a 
proposed refunding bond issue of the Successor Agency to the 
Redevelopment Agency for the County. 
 
Assembly Bill No. 1484 allows successor agencies to refund the bonds of their 
former redevelopment agencies to provide debt service savings. The County is 
planning to issue bonds in Fiscal 2016-17 in order to take advantage of lower 
bond costs to reduce their annual debt service payments. 
 
By refunding the bonds and reissuing them at a lower cost, the County would 
have more money available to satisfy the statutory pass-through obligations. 
The refunding bond issue strengthens the Agency’s ability to receive pass-
through payments. 
 
In order for the County to proceed with the refunding bond issue, the County 
needs a subordination acknowledgement from DWA. Additionally, the 
refunding bonds will not be issued unless the new debt service is lower than 
the debt service on the existing bonds. Furthermore, if the Agency does not 
respond (with a resolution), the subordination will be automatically deemed 
approved by the Agency. 
 
Legal Counsel has prepared Resolution No. 1155 for the Board’s 
consideration. Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1155.  
 



 

01358.00000\29589984.1  

RESOLUTION NO. 1155 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DESERT 
WATER AGENCY APPROVING THE SUBORDINATION OF 

STATUTORY PASS-THROUGH PAYMENTS TO DEBT 
SERVICE PAYMENTS ON REFUNDING BONDS TO BE 

ISSUED BY THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FOR THE COUNTY OF 

RIVERSIDE FOR THE MID-COUNTY  
REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 

WHEREAS, the Redevelopment Agency for the County of Riverside has issued 

tax increment bonds that are currently outstanding to finance projects for the Mid-County 

Redevelopment Project Area, which is located within the boundaries of Desert Water Agency; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency for the County 

of Riverside (“Successor Agency”) expects to issue refunding bonds to replace the currently 

outstanding bonds, to take advantage of lower interest rates available in the current bond market, 

the effect of which will be to lower the total debt service payments required to be collected from 

the real property located within this redevelopment project area; and 

WHEREAS, Desert Water Agency receives statutory pass-through payments of a 

portion of the tax increment revenue generated within this redevelopment project area, as 

provided by law, affecting portions of Desert Water Agency identified by the Successor Agency 

as the First Fringe Area and the Sixth Fringe Pseudo Area; and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency has requested that Desert Water Agency 

acknowledge in writing that its statutory pass-through payments for the First Fringe Area and in 

the Sixth Fringe Pseudo Area shall be subordinated to the debt service obligations for the 

refunding bonds to be paid from tax increment revenue collected from the properties within those 

areas; and 

WHEREAS, as provided by law, in order for Desert Water Agency to disapprove 

the requested subordination, Desert Water Agency would be required to make a finding, based 

on substantial evidence, that the Successor Agency will not be able to pay the debt service on the 



 

01358.00000\29589984.1  

refunding bonds and the statutory pass-through payments that the Successor Agency is required 

to pay to Desert Water Agency; and 

WHEREAS, based on the information provided by the Successor Agency, Desert 

Water Agency believes that issuance of the refunding bonds will lower the annual debt service 

burden on the properties within the redevelopment project area, thereby enhancing the likelihood 

that the Successor Agency will be able to pay debt service on the refunding bonds and also pay 

the statutory pass-through payments required to be paid to Desert Water Agency; and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency has further indicated that it will not issue 

refunding bonds unless the debt service on the refunding bonds will be lower than the debt 

service on the existing bonds to be refunded; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of 

Desert Water Agency hereby approves the subordination of its statutory pass-through payments 

to the debt service payments on refunding bonds to be issued by the Successor Agency for the 

Mid-County Redevelopment Project Area, affecting Desert Water Agency’s First Fringe Area 

and Sixth Fringe Area Pseudo Area, and does hereby authorize execution of written 

acknowledgments of same as requested by the Successor Agency and as provided by law. 

ADOPTED this 7th day of March, 2017. 
 
 

 
            

James Cioffi, President  
Board of Directors 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors 
 



7-A 

01358.00002\29589074.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

February 23, 2017 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: GENERAL MANAGER AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 

FROM: BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 

RE: FEBRUARY 16, 2017 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
STATE WATER CONTRACTORS, INC. 

The February 16, 2017 meeting of the Board of Directors of the State Water 

Contractors, Inc., was conducted at the Tsakopoulos Library Galleria in downtown Sacramento.  

1. Life Cycle Model for Winter Run Salmon. 

As its first item of business, the SWC Board authorized splitting a total cost of up 

to $80,000 with the San Luis & Delta Mendota Water Authority to review a life cycle model that 

the National Marine Fisheries Service developed for the winter run salmon.  The life cycle model 

prepared by NMFS appears to have impacts for Cal WaterFix, and yet has not been adequately 

vetted by peer review.  The SWC’s salmon biologists have questions regarding the parameters 

used to develop the model.  SWC biologist Chuck Hanson has already been authorized to review 

the model, but the Board wanted to also engage the services of a statistician and a fisheries 

modeler to review the model.  The SWC Board authored splitting cosst with the SL&DMWA for 

that additional work.   

2. Study of Out Migrating Salmon Smolts. 

The biological opinions issued in 2008 and 2009 restricted flows in the Delta in a 

way that draws out migrating salmon smolts to the pumps in the South Delta.  The Contractors 

would like to compare the effects of predation on salmon smolt mortality with the operation of 

the pumps for the SWP.  Salmon smolts are tagged and released at Vernalis, at a location near 

where the San Joaquin River enters the Delta.  The Contractors believe that most of the smolts 

are eaten by larger fish before they ever get to the vicinity of the pumps.  Therefore, the 

Contractors would like to release tagged salmon smolts closer to the pumps and monitor how 



 

 
- 2 - 

01358.00002\29589074.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

many of those are lost to predation, rather than at the pumps.  These smolts can be tagged with 

sensors that reveal when the smolt has been eaten, by detecting stomach enzymes within the 

belly of a larger fish.  Therefore, the proposal is to release tagged salmon smolts just east of the 

Clifton Court Forebay, and track them to determine how many are eaten by predators.  The total 

cost of this project exceeds $500,000, but will be shared with a number of agencies such that the 

share of the costs to the Contractors will be approximately $155,000.  The SWC’s Board 

authorized that expenditure as well.   

3. San Joaquin River Flow Augmentation. 

The SWC Board also authorized splitting a total expenditure with the San Luis & 

Delta Mendota Water Authority to purchase up 100,000 acre feet of water from Oakdale 

Irrigation District and San Joaquin River Irrigation District to augment flows in the San Joaquin 

River in the April-May pulse flow period.  Although this expenditure was approved, it may turn 

out to be unnecessary because the larger than average snow pack in the San Joaquin River 

watershed will likely produce sufficient flows in the April-May period, such that it is 

unnecessary to purchase additional water in order to satisfy the pulse flow requirements.  

4. Water Operations Update. 

On the date of the meeting, DWR personnel were all preoccupied in dealing with 

the spillway erosion problems at Lake Oroville.  Therefore, John Leahigh of DWR was not 

present to provide his usual report on water supply conditions.  Instead, Alyson Febbo of the 

State Water Contractors provided a report.  As of the date of the meeting, the Feather River 

watershed had received 13.5 inches of rainfall over the previous ten days, and was anticipating 

another 7.5 inches in the next subsequent ten days.  The snow pack was quite heavy, and snow 

levels were  low in the mountains.  Water was being released at Lake Oroville and at Shasta in 

order to free flood control space.  Exports from the Delta were at full throttle for both the SWP 

and the CVP.  In the San Luis Reservoir, the SWP share of storage had encroached into the CVP 

share of storage space by 12,000 acre feet.  However, that encroachment would need to be 

eliminated, because the CVP was quickly filling its share of storage as well.  Precipitation to date 

was at 219% of average in the Northern Sierra, 223% of average in the San Joaquin watershed, 

and 220% of average in the Tulare Basin region.  Snow pack was not quite at that level but was 



 

 
- 3 - 

01358.00002\29589074.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

still at 179% of average statewide.  Alyson could not indicate whether the allocation was likely 

to be increased, especially given the spillway problems at Oroville, which required the release of 

water from storage in order to reduce the potential for a catastrophic problem if a spillway 

structure were to fail.   

5. Legislative Report. 

Tim Haines of the SWC provided a written report of legislative matters, a copy of 

which is enclosed with this memo.  The written report was prepared by Cathy Cole, lobbyist for 

Metropolitan Water District.  Tim Haines called particular attention to AB 313, a bill that would 

transfer SGMA enforcement from the State Water Resources Control Board to the Department of 

Water Resources, and would transition operation of the State Water Project away from DWR and 

to a new commission to be governed by nine political appointees of the Governor.  Tim Haines 

and the SWC Board expressed concern about the prospect of transferring operation of the State 

Water Project to a political body governed by political appointees.  Tim did state that the 

legislation was unlikely to survive the process and be enacted.   

6. SWC Bylaw Revisions. 

SWC General Manager Terry Erlewine provided an update regarding proposed 

revisions to the SWC Bylaws.  A number of the proposed revisions were inconsequential, 

including changing the name “entitlement” to “Table A Amount” consistent with a requirement 

set forth in the Monterey settlement; a change to provide that the SWC “may” engage an 

assistant general manager, instead of being required to do so; the addition of a provision allowing 

the SWC to hire a general counsel, as it already has; and a change in the way that dues are 

accessed to SWC members.  The proposed change in the way that dues are assessed was more 

substantive, and generated some discussion.   

In 2005, when the SWC engaged in the process of relicensing the power plant at 

Oroville, the Board and the members agreed that the relicensing expenses should be split evenly 

between the Energy Fund, which is allocated among members in accordance with the energy 

costs that each experiences, and the Dues Fund, which is allocated among members in proportion 

to their Table A Amounts. Now that those cost have been incurred and relicensing expenses are 

no longer significant, the proposal is to move all of the dues back to the Energy Fund so that they 



 

 
- 4 - 

01358.00002\29589074.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

may be shared among members in proportion to their energy costs.  However, the group also 

discussed a proposal to simply empower the SWC Board to create funds as necessary in a given 

circumstance, and to determine how the dues should be allocated among members for each fund.   

Currently the bylaws provide that any changes in the dues must be approved by 

two-thirds of the total members of the SWC.  The proposal is to simply entrust the dues 

allocation methodology to the Board itself, such that a majority of the Board could make that 

decision in lieu of two-thirds of the total membership.  Those in attendance at the meeting 

appeared to be comfortable with that concept, trusting the Board to fairly allocate dues among 

the members.  However, since the bylaws currently provide that a change in methodology 

requires approval by two-thirds of the members, that change to the bylaws can only occur if 

approved by two-thirds of the members when the amendments are ultimately circulated for 

approval within the next few weeks. 

7. New SWC General Manager. 

SWC Board President Doug Headrick announce that the Board had decided to 

hire Jennifer Pierre as the new General Manager of the State Water Contractors to succeed Terry 

Erlewine who is retiring from his position.  Headrick reported that Jennifer Pierre was highly 

recommended and has worked for years on Cal WaterFix and the Bay Delta Conservation Plan 

as a principal at ICF International.  

MICHAEL T. RIDDELL 













Ending At Midnight - March 2, 2017

Graph Updated 03/03/2017 10:15 AM

LEGEND

Capacity
(TAF)

% of Capacity |% of Historical
Average

Historical

Average

Trinity Lake
79% | 106%

Lake Shasta
79% | 108%

Lake Oroville
78% | 112%

Folsom Lake
39% | 70%

New Melones Lake
66% | 108%

Don Pedro Reservoir
98% | 137%

McClure

Data Not Updated

Data From: Mar 1

Lake McClure
89% | 170%

San Luis Reservoir
98% | 115%

Millerton Lake
77% | 117%

Lake Perris
44% | 53%

Castaic Lake
92% | 106%

Pine Flat Reservoir
77% | 144%








































































































	030717 Board Agenda
	Item 2 022117 Board Minutes
	MINUTES  2
	OF THE REGULAR MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 3 030717 GM Report
	MARCH 7, 2017

	Item 6A 030717 Penalty hearings staff report
	030717 hearing packet_Redacted.pdf
	Swanson photo 2
	Swanson photo
	Swanson request for hearing
	Swanson citation
	Basile photo
	Basile request for hearing
	Basile citation
	030717 Penalty hearing summaries.pdf


	Item 6B 030717 Sentinel MOU Staff Report
	Item 6C 030717 Draft MOA for SGMA edited staff report
	Item 6D 030717 SB415 election date change staff report
	Item 6E 030717 Res 1154 Backup facility charges staff reportFINAL (2)
	Item 6F 030717 Request go to bid 2016-2017 repl pipeline staff report
	Item 6G 030717 Adopt Reso 1155 Pass thru payments staff report
	Item 7A SWC_ MEMO TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF FEBRUARY 16 2017 BOARD MEETING (DESERT)-c1
	MEMORANDUM
	1. Life Cycle Model for Winter Run Salmon.
	2. Study of Out Migrating Salmon Smolts.
	3. San Joaquin River Flow Augmentation.
	4. Water Operations Update.
	5. Legislative Report.
	6. SWC Bylaw Revisions.
	7. New SWC General Manager.

	Item 8A 030717 O&C Media
	Item 8B 030717 O&C Activities



